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“Get going. Move Forward. Aim High.
Plan a takeoff. Don’t just sit on the
runway and hope someone will come
along and push the airplane. It simply
won’t happen. Change your attitude
and gain some altitude.

Believe me, you’ll love it up here.”

— Donald Trump, Real Estate
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Message from the
Governor and Lt. Governor
of Guam

Guam International Airport Authority
The Aviation Hub of Micornesia

Héfa Adail As the aviation hub of Micronesia, the A.B.
Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam serves as
a critical link between the Western Pacific and the other
Micronesian islands, as well as Asia and connecting on
to the South Pacific. The men and women of the airport
have done a phenomenal job of ensuring that our visitors
and transiting passengers are treated with the hospitality
for which our island is known.

This year, Guam has seen an increase in visitors — and
those numbers are expected to continue to move
upward. Much of that is due to the hard work of many of
our people including the A.B. Won Pat International
Airport Authority, Guam. The airport family is building the

insfrastructure to support the growing number of visitors.

They are meeting federal security requirements. The
airport is pushing forward with the runway expansion
project, upgrading the arrivals corridor and replacing the
decades-old baggage system with a new system that is
more efficient.

In addition to the increased tourist traffic, the airport
family has been able to help grow the aviation industry
on Guam by helping Japan Airlines open their pilot
training on Guam. It’s an exciting time for Guam. We
appreciate the work of the men and women of the A.B.
Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam who are
there to lead the way into a brighter econimic future.

Grow with Guam.

Eddie Baza Calvo
Governor of Guam

Ray Tenorio
Lt. Governor of Guam

A

Lucy M. Alcorn
Board Director

Martin J. Gerber
Board Director

Linda A. Tolan
Board Director

Sonny P. Ada
Board Director

Peter Roy Martinez
Deputy Executive Manager

Charles H. Ada Il
Executive Manager

Message from the
Board and Management

The A.B. Won Pat International Airport Authority,
Guam is “On it — 24/7”, 24 hours a day, 7 days
a week!

37 years ago, public law (P.L. 13-57) created the
the A.B. Won Pat International Airport Authority,
Guam as an autonomous agency charged with
managing the day-to-day operations of the Guam
International Airport.

Today, Guam’s network of flights include 247
scheduled flights and over 345 charter flights
annually. Guam is connected to 27 destinations
to major cities in Japan, Korea, Taiwan and to
Australia, Honolulu and islands throughout
Micronesia. Just this past year, we added 3
destinations to and from Russia, direct flights to
Beijing and we hope to attract new carriers and
added frequencies in the following year.

Guam’s Airport has become a major driver of the
island’s economy, generating billions of dollars,
creating thousands of jobs and making a vital
contribution to the Guam'’s trade and tourism by
strengthening connections with the world.

The Board and Management are proud of this
past year’s accomplishments and proudly report
the positive results in our Annual Report.



“Investment in
knowledge pays
the best interest.”

WhiStIe — Benjamin Franklin
while we...
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Finance

The Guam Airport needs to expand

and diversify business to keep up with
the increasing demard for air travet,
and financing this development Is very
challenging. Withestrong management
control systems, and our
understanding of the air transportation
system In our part-of the world, the
A.B. Won Pat International Airport,
Guam has performed very well in the
area of Finance.

Bond proceeds will fund over $167M terminal and
facility enhancement projects over the next 3 to 5

years and infuse money into the local economy.

Fiscal performance was outstanding in 2013, with
actual operating revenues 9.7% over projections
and expenses well below budget by 9.8%. Net
income was recorded at $15.1M as compared to a
decrease of $395,000 in FY2012 based on total
revenues of $86.7M. This was a 30.4% increase

year-on-year.

The airport also maintained a strong Debt Service
Coverage Ratio of 2.06, well over the 1.25 ratio

required per the Airport’s General Revenue bonds.



Service and
Engagement

“One’s
destination is
never a place, but
a new way of
seeing things.”

— Henry Miller
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Air Service
Development

The A.B. Won Pat International Airport,
Guam continues to attract new air
service from all over the world,
oroviding our passengers with an
ever-expanding route network.,

HISTORY IN
PROGRESS

252 scheduled flights
operate weekly out of the
Guam International Airport
- and with passenger
charters, Guam averages
42 flights a day.

Guam is connected to
over 22 destinations -
all international ports in
Asia, the Pacific Islands
and Australia, and the
domestic ports of
Honolulu and the CNMI.

WE’RE
ONIT
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“The customer
experience is the
next competitive
battleground.”

— Jerry Gregoire CIO,
Dell Computers

Have fun
while we work.
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Service
And Community
Engagement

The A.B. Won Pat International Airport,
Guam recognizes the importance of its
role In our island community. That is
why there are core objectives In
engaging the community and being

an active and positive player with our
stakeholders that include Guam'’s
residents, neighboring villages, our
airlines and tenants and visitors to

our Island,

HISTORY IN
PROGRESS

Over 2,500 students tour the
airport facility each year,
providing the full travel
experience of being issued a
ticket, going through security
screening, boarding an
aircraft, processing through
baggage claim and visiting
interesting areas such as the
boarding gates, the ramp
control and arrivals lobby of
the airport.

Airport management, airport
firefighters, and airport police
officers all take part in island
wide career day presentations
at elementary, middle and
high schools, promoting
careers in aviation.

The Airport operates an
Information Center located in
the Arrivals lobby where
information about Guam and
airport services is provided to
all passengers. Over 10,000
inquiries are handled on an
annual basis by the Airport
Information Center.

Efficient Passenger
processing is supported by
foreign speaking
ambassadors who assist
visitors in filling out proper
US entry forms. Global Entry
kiosks and TSA Pre-check
programs are in place to
expedite arrivals and
departures of visitors who are
eligible and take part of these
programs internationally.

Corporate and Traveler
Information is available on the
www.guamairport.com
website!

The Airport will launch a
mobile application for smart
phone users and will feature

important passenger services
and information.

WE’RE
ONIT

2444




“Aviation is proof
that given the
will, we have the
capacity to
achieve the

impossible.”

— Edward Vernon
Rickenbacker,
Aviator



18

Capital
Improvement
Projects

In 2013, the A. B. Won Pat.International
Airport Authority, Guam launched the
start of an aggressive $167 Million
capital improvement program that will
enhance passenger facilitation, improve
services and maintain safety and
security measures for passengers and
users of the terminal.

HISTORY IN
PROGRESS

The current Airport
building completed in
1998 remains the largest
capital improvement
project ever undertaken
on Guam at $241M.

The main terminal footprint
is over 767,553 square feet
of terminal space.

WE’RE
ONIT

With these
improvements, the
Guam Airport looks
forward to a bright
future as a hub for
travel in Asia and the
Pacific and soon
being able to
accommodate long
range, long haul
flights across the
Pacific Ocean,
expanding services,
furthering its reaches
and providing more
opportunity for the
island and

its people.

First Priority

INTERNATIONAL ARRIVALS CORRIDOR
Construction of a 3rd level corridor for
arriving passengers will permanently
solve the TSA mandate to separate
arriving and passengers.

PHASE 3 NEAR-FAULT SEISMIC
UPGRADE

Installation of Terminal Structure Seismic
upgrades for the central terminal and
east concourse.

HOLD BAG SCREENING RELOCATION
Relocation of the bulky baggage screening
to the back of the ticket counters, freeing
up space in the ticket lobbies.

SECURITY SCREENING CONTROL POINT
Installation of additional screening

lanes which adds space to the
Well-Wishers Lobby

FLIGHT INFORMATION DISPLAY
REPLACEMENT

Replacement & Update of the flight
information display monitors throughout
the terminal.

INTEGRATED PASSENGER LOADING
BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
Replacement of passenger jetways

and air condition handling units for
landing bridges.

COMMON USE CHECK-IN FACILITIES
Migration to the Common Use

Check-in System will allow all airlines to
use any ticket counter for check-in
process, allowing for maximized use of
check-in counters.

FUEL SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS
Improvement of fire suppression system
and connections in terminal.

PARKING EXPANSION

Addition of a single level parking
deck to the Terminal Parking area,
expanding parking capacity and
improving passenger service.

INTER-ISLAND PASSENGER FACILITY
Construction of a separate facility for a
commuter terminal/domestic inter-island
operations for passenger convenience.

AIRCRAFT RESCUE AND FIRE
FIGHTING (ARFF) FACILITY
REPLACEMENT

Construction of a new ARFF Facility fully
code compliant with FAA standards.

CARGO APRON RELOCATION
Expansion of new Apron area for cargo,
adjacent to Integrated Air Cargo Facility.

REPLACE TERMINAL SEATING
Replacement of new passenger seating
systems with newer seats throughout
the terminal.

Second Priority

PHASE 4 NEAR-FAULT SEISMIC
UPGRADE

Structural Upgrade installation of Central
Terminal, Front, Back and Core to
withstand earthquakes.

ACCESS CONTROL AND SECURITY
IMPROVEMENTS

Enhancement of access control points
with improved security programs to
include biometrics.

TERMINAL FLOORING REPLACEMENT
Installation of new, durable and safe
flooring material throughout the terminal.

UPGRADE AIRPORT IT AND FMS
Upgrading of Airport Information
Technology and Financial
Management Systems.

ROUTE 10A LANDSCAPE COMPONENT
Landscaping of Rt. 10A roadways
consistent with Department of Public
Works expanded roadway project.

ENCLOSE ARRIVAL TUNNELS
Enclosure of the Arrival tunnels

leading out to the parking lot, which will
add arrivals lobby space.

REPLACE CONVEYANCE SYSTEMS
Replacement of terminal elevators,
escalators and moving walkways with
modern energy efficient equipment.

STRENGTHEN AND EXPAND
CURBSIDE CANOPIES

Installation of expanded curbside canopies
for extended protection from inclement
weather and security reinforcement.



"There isn't a flight
goes by when I don't
stare out of the window
and thank my stars for
what I'm seeing and

feeling."

— Richard Branson, pilot and
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Operations

Flying and take-offs are a normal part
of Airport Operations, and Is fully
dependent on runways, taxiways,
airfield lighting, aircraft related
equipment, and correlated technical
services. 24 hours a day, 7 days a
week, the Guam Airport operates to
accommodate the 52,725 flights that
occurred just last year at the A.B.
Won Pat International Airport. These
alrcraft movements consisted of
operations of commercial jets,
commuter aircraft, technical stops,
charters, private jets and student pilot
training, to name a few,

HISTORY IN
PROGRESS

Over 2.6M passengers
have arrived and departed
through the Guam
International Airport.

Airline operators include:-
United Airlines, Delta Air
Lines, Korean Airlines,
Philippine Airlines, Jin Air,
Jeju Air, China Air, EVA Air,
Cape Air, Freedom Air,
Dynamic Air, Oren Air.

Guam has two runways - A
primary runway which
measures 12,000 linear
feet and a secondary
runway measuring 10,000
linear feet. Guam Airport
is also equipped with a
taxiway to maximize
aircraft operations.
Guam’s airport can
accommodate bigger
aircraft to include the B747
and B777 and can
accommodate long range,
long haul flights, fully
loaded flights.

WE’RE
ONIT

The diverse array of aircraft
using our facilities are
dependent upon safe and
fully compliant airfield and
the Guam Airport
Operations division is key
to the provision of air
services to Guam.



Operational Stats and Performance
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Supplementary Information
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanving statements of net position of the Antonio B. Won Pat
International Airport Authority, Guam (the Authority). a component unit of the Government of
Guam, as of September 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and
changes 1 net position and cash flows for the years then ended. and the related notes to the
financial statements. which collectively compnise the Authority’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management 1s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design
implementation. and mamntenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to frand
Of errofr.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility 1s to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our aundits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted m the United
States and the standards applicable to financial audits contained i Government Auditing
Standards, 1ssued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit mvolves performing procedures to obtamn audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment. including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments_ the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’'s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are approprate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management_ as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

A member frm of Emst & Young Giebal Limied



Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year ended September 30, 2013

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the Antonio B. Won Pat International
Airport Authority, Guam’s (the Authority) activities and financial performance provides the
reader with an introduction and overview to the financial statements for the fiscal vear ("FY )
ended September 30, 2013. This discussion has been prepared by management and should be
read in conjunction with the financial statements and the notes thereto, which follow this section.

The Authority was created by Public Law 13-57 (as amended) as a component unit of the
Government of Guam (Gov(Guam) to own and operate the facilities of the Guam International
Asrport Termunal (the Termmal).

The Authority is a self-sustaining autonomous government agency, and operates and maintains
the Termmal The Terminal provides facilities for commuter and domestic overseas flights, and
international flights to destinations in Micronesia, Asia and Australia. It 1s anthorized to impose
and collect rates and charges for the Terminal’s services and properties to generate revenues to
fund operating expenses. The 2003 Airport Bonds issued by the Authority, federal grants and
awrport revenues funded the construction of the Awrport Termunal Building and the Capatal
Improvement Program. The Authonty issued the 2013 Asrport Bonds during the fourth quarter
of FY 2013 that refunded the 2003 bonds and provided funds for planned capital improvement

projects.
A, Mission Statement

The Authority strives to ensure the safety and security of the traveling public, 1s dedicated to
maintaining a superior and reliable level of amrport services for our island residents and tourists,
and is committed to supporting the development of air linkages and facilities which are integral
parts of the island’s future economic growth. The Authority’s vision is to advance Guam further
as the first class premier air transportation hub of the region.

B. Using the Financial Statements

The Authority utilizes the flow of economic measurement focus. Financial statements are
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States as
applied to governmental units using the accrual basis of accounting. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 15 the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The Authority has implemented
GASB Statement No. 20 and elected not to apply Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB™) Statements and Interpretations 1ssued after November 30, 1989

Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued

B. Using the Financial Statements, continued

Revenues are categorized as either operatng or non-operating based upon definitions provided
by GASB Statement No. 34. Significant recurning sources of the Authority’s revenues, including
federal grants are reported as non-operating revenues.

C. Authority Activities and Highlights

Passenger activity mm FY 2013 approached record level for the Authorty. Total FY 2013
passenger enplanements bordered on the 1.7 mullion threshold. FY 2013 signatory enplanements
of 1,693 962 and total enplanements of 1 697 986 exceeded the prior vear by 8 1% and 7 8%,
respectively. When compared to budget projections, actual signatory airline enplanements
increased by 6.6%.

The Authority continued to position itself as the eighth ranked airport for international arrivals
for all U.S. ports of entry ahead of large airports such as Chicago and Atlanta. Over 90% of the
Authority’s enplanements are international from Ornigin & Destination markets.

During the fiscal year. the Authority expended a considerable amount of energy, time and
resources in preparation for the refunding of 2003 Awrport Bonds. Multiple sessions occurred
with Guam Economic Development Agency (GEDA). bond counsel and underwriters and rating
agencies, Moody's and Standard & Poor’s. A special legislative session called by the Governor
resulied in the eventual passage of the Authority’'s required bond legislation  Outreach
presentations in the major financial markets to prospective bond buyers, a first for the Authonty,
generated overwhelming interest during the bond sale to the tune of $1.8 billion. In September
2013, these efforts culminated in the closing of the Series 2013 Awrport Bonds i the amount of
$247.335.000.

After an exhaustive proposal review and evaluation process, the Authority selected and
contracted with a new specialty retail concessionaire. Despite the disclosure of legal challenges,
the substantial increase in the minimum annual guarantee (MAG) supported the Authority’s
initiative to mclude about $110 million in new money for capital improvement projects as part of
the 2013 Awrport Bonds. The new MAG of $154 million 1s a 285% increase over the prior
contract MAG of $4 million and the percentage rent of 31% is a 155% increase over the prior
percentage rent of 20 — 22 3%_ The Authority 1s haghly confident that the new concessionaire
will provide vibrant and exciting products, mnovative services to the passengers and a 100%
focus on amport retail sales.

In a highly competitive request for proposals procurement, the Authority selected a new operator
for its fuel system operations and maimntenance program. The new operator brings a fresh
perspective for efficient and cost effective operations, an enhanced gquality control and assurance
program and a secured environment for a critical element of the awrport mfrastructure.



Opinions

In our opinion. the financial statements referred to above present fairly. in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the Authonity as of September 30, 2013 and 2012, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years
then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Adoption of GASE Sratement No. 65, “Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities™

As discussed m Note 1 to the financial statements, the Authority restated s 2012 financial
statements as a result of the adoption of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 63, “Iftems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities”, effective October 1,
2011. Our opinion 1s not modified with respect to this matter.

Reguired Supplementary Information

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the Management's Discussion and
Analysis on pages 4 through 17 and the schedule of Funding Progress on page 353, be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information. although not a part of the basic
financial statements. i1s requiwed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board which
considers 1t to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements
in an appropriate operational. economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary mformation in accordance with anditing standards
generally accepted in the United States, which consisted of mquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for comsistency with
management’ s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audst of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opimion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our andit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Authonty's basic financial statements. The supplementary mformation
included in pages 56 through 59 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The supplementary information included mm pages 56 through 39 is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. In our opinion, the supplementary
information 1s fairly stated. in all material respects. in relation to the basic financial statements as
a whole.

Supplementary and Other Information, continued

The 2013 Schedule 9 Employee Data on page 60 has not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied m the audit of the basic financial statements, and, accordingly, we do not
EXPIEss an opinion or provide any assurance omn it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Anditing Standards

In accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards, we also have issued our report dated
January 30, 2014 on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report 1s to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report 15 an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards i considering the Authority's mternal control over financial reporting and

compliance.
W ¥ MLL?

January 30, 2014



Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority. Guam

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued

C. Authority Activities and Highlights, continued

Although the energy management program was vet to be completed at the end of FY 2013, key
milestones were met during the year with the imstallation of energy efficient highting and the
istallation of new chillers, cooling towers and air handling units which largely comprised the air
conditioning system for the termunal The latter mitigated the recurning condition of high
temperatures in the building that impacted the passengers, employees and retail products.

Gomg forward to FY 2014, the Authority seeks to mamtain the FY 2013 signatory enplanement
level with a slight uptick of 1.0% or 1,711,939 enplanements based on airline budgeted forecasts.
There are uncertainties with the devaluation of currencies from our major markets, particularly
with Japan. and its contractionary impact on leisure travel, consumer confidence in their local
economies; unstable fuel costs: and the US. fiscal recovery. The Authority recognizes the
sensitivities of operating in a resort destination and has worked to sustain and increase its cash
reserves.

Activities for the Authority for the years ended September 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 are as
follows:

2013
% Increase
{Decrease)
2013 2012 2011 from 2012
Major revenue sources:
Landing fees £2963427 § 3042100 § 2567747 -2.6%
Terninal 11252173 10861087 10,618,530 3 6%
Concessions and parking 18022564 15899179 14762957 13 4%
Total $32238164 $20.800375 $27.940234 8.2%
Passenger (enplanements) activity:
Signatory airlines 1.693.962 1,566,356  1.416.873 8.1%
Other airlines 4.024 8.135 22,551 -50.5%
Total enplanements 1.697.986 1574491 1.430 424 7.8%
Aircraft operations 52725 48,750 46,030 8.2%
Aireraft landed weights (000) 3.258.721 3296664 2787086 -1.2%
O & D passengers 2.984.067 2819665 2548446 5.8%
Transfer passengers 199 567 167.328 175,181 193%
Total passengers 3.183.634 2086003 2723627 6.6%

Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued

C. Authority Activities and Highlights, continued

Signatory Enplanements
1,750,000 1,603,962
1,700,000 -
1650000
1.600,000
1.550,000 -
1.500,000 -
1.450,000 -
1.400,000
1,350,000
1,300,000 -
1,250,000

1,566.356

1,416,873

FY 2013 FY 2012 FY 2011

For FY 2013, the signatory airlines cost per enplaned passenger (CPE) of $17.24 is an increase
from the $16.81 CPE in FY 2012 or a modest 2.6% increase. The increased expenditure level 1s
largely attributed to higher utility costs, debt service on the energy management loan and the
phased mmplementation of the employee compensation plan.

Despite the increase in CPE, the Authonty still maintained a competitive cost structure and
managed to achieve a debt service coverage of 2_06 versus the 1.25 debt service requirements of
the former 2003 and new 2013 bond covenants. Moreover. the Authority continued to maintain
a superior and reliable level of awrport services m the facilitation of passengers and cargo to their
destinations safely, efficiently, and effectively, kev success factors paramount to the Authority’s
financial success, while promoting commerce and comnectivity to our neighboring islands and
countries in the region.

The following airlines served the Authority with scheduled passenger service for FY 2013:
United Asrlines, Delta Airlines, China Airlines, Japan Airlines, Korean Asrlines, Philippine
Airhines, Jin Air. Eva Air, Jeju Aisrlines and Aerospace Concepts with the latter operating a
business jet service. Intermittent charters with passenger service included Skymark and
Starflyer, both out of Japan.

The principal commuter airlines providing inter-island passenger flight service to and from
Guam and the Commonwealth of the Northern Manana Islands (CMNI) are Freedom Air,
Micronesian Awviation Systems, and Cape Air. Cargo operators include Asia Pacific Airlines,
Federal Express and UPS.



Antonio B. Won Pat Infernational Airport Authority, Guam

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued

D. Financial Operation Highlights

For FY 2013, total revenues amounted to $86.7 million. an increase of 30 4% year-over-year
versus FY 2012 amount of $66.5 million. Operating income which amounted to $59.8 million
accounted for 69.0% of all revenue 1n 2013. The remaining 31.0% or $26.9 million of revenue
was comprised of non-operating income that included interest mcome, passenger facility
charges, and grants from the U 5. government and transfers from GovGuam

The Authority continues to focus efforts to expand and diversify the non-airline revenue stream.
Operational Revenues

The $59 8 million in operational revemues earned in FY 2013 represented a 13.9% increase
versus the $52.5 million recorded m FY 2012, This mcrease mn operating revenue may be
attributed to the increase in non-aeronautical revenue streams which accounted for 53% of the
Authority’s operating revenue in 2013. Concession fees increased to $18.0 million or 13.2%
year-on-year, versus the $15.9 million in 2012. General merchandise revenue rose 22 4% but
resulted in a decreased average spend per enplaned passenger of approximmately $17.94 in 2013
versus $22 91 in 2012. Ground transportation rose 7.5% from $4 8 million to $5.2 million due to
increased passenger activity. Eental income increased by 3.6% for the same period with non-

airline rentals reflecting an increase of 4.6%. up $4.0 nullion from $3.8 million.
Non-Operating Revenues

Non-operating revenues increased in FY 2013 by 91.8% wversus 2012, $27 million versus $14.1
million respectively. The increase m FY 2013 1s primanly attributed to the increase in grants
from the U.S. government which amounted to $17.4 mullion and interest income of $2.97
milhon

Operational Expenses

For FY 2013, operational expenses which equaled $38 4 nullion, reflects a 9.3% year-over-year
increase from FY 2012°s amount of $35.1 million. The increase of 25.5% for personnel services

was due to the phased implementation of the authority’s compensation plan. The number of Full
Time Employee (FTE) employees decreased by 1.0%. from 192 to 190.

Review of Notable Events in FY 2013

The recovery m 2012 from the Japan disaster and an upswing in passenger activity sustained that
momentum forward to 2013 and contmued that positive trend throughout the year sumlarly
pegged to historically high visitor peak months. FY 2013 signatory enplanements of 1,693_.962
and total enplanements of 1,697 986 exceeded the prior year by 8.1% and 7 8%, respectively.
These are the second highest totals in the Authority’s history.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued

D. Financial Operation Highlights, continued

Review of Notable Events in FY 2013, continued

In September 2013, the Authornity closed the sale on the Senies 2013 Awport Bonds 1n the amount
of $247.375,000. There was high drama in the days preceding the sale with global and national
events that could induce an increase to mmnicipal bond interest rates and make the bond
refunding unfeasible and exceed the interest rate cap mimposed by law. Those events such as the
potential U.S. intervention in the Syria conflict and concerns with high risk actions by Puerto
Rico on their government debt were apparently offset by the Authority’s online marketing and
personalized presentations to potential bond buyers that resulted in $1.8 billion of orders and the
overwhelming demand yielded a true interest cost (T1C) of 6.28%. Moody s Investor Services
assigned an investment grade rating of Baa2 to the 2013 Asurport Bonds with a stable outlook and
Standard and Poor’s Rating Services assigned their rating of BBB with a stable outlook.

After an exhaustive proposal review and evaluation process, the Authority selected and
contracted with a new specialty retail concessionaire. Despite the disclosure of legal challenges,
the substantial increase i the minimum annual guarantee (MAG) supported the Authority’'s
initiative to include about $110 million in new money for capital improvement projects as part of
the 2013 Airport Bonds. The new MAG of $15.4 million is a 385% increase over the prior
contract MAG of $4 million and the percentage rent of 31% 1s a 155% increase over the prior
percentage rent of 20 — 22.5%_. The Aunthority 1s highly confident that the new concessionaire
will provide vibrant and exciting products, mnovative services to the passengers and a 100%
focus on amport retail sales.

Kev financial metrics include an increase of the signatory airline cost per enplaned passenger
from $16.81 m FY 2012 to $17.24 in FY 2013 and the significant increase of the debt service
coverage ratio from 1.67 m FY 2012 to 2.06 in FY 2013. The Series 2003 and 2013 Airport

Bonds require minimum debt service coverage of 1.25.

Following the Department of Public Works™ (DPW) completion of the environmental assessment
that resulted in a mutually acceptable roadway alignment. substantial progress was made in the
resolution of the Tivan Parkway project. Surveys and appraisals were completed for both the
Phase 1 airport property and Phase 2 private property parcels. The legislature. in two public
laws, appropriated $1 8 mullion for the imnitial private property acquisition. DPW had also
advertised an mvitation for bids for the Phase 1 construction with a notice to proceed scheduled
for April 2014. A memorandum of understanding was executed between the local and federal
government stakeholders to formalize pending action items and continued interaction and
communication. Favorable consideration is being vetted to delay the closure of Central Avenue
which 1s an obstruction to the munway safety area (RSA) with the understanding that a U.S.

congressional mandate requires that all airport RSA's be cleared and compliant with FAA
standards by the end of 2015.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued

D. Financial Operation Highlights, continued

Review of Notable Events in FY 2013, continued

In a highly competitive request for proposals procurement_ the Authority selected a new operator
for its fuel system operations and maintenance program. The new operator brings a fresh
perspective for efficient and cost effective operations, an enhanced quality control and assurance
program and a secured environment for a critical element of the awrport mfrastructure.

To provide the Authority with a well-defined and strategic plan of action, the Authority procured
and retained an air service development consultant with global experience and relationships.
Planning sessions are expected during the first part of 2014 in conjunction with Guam Visitor’s

Bureau (GVB) and GEDA.

Although the energy management program was yet to be completed at the end of FY 2013, key
milestones were met during the vear with the installation of energy efficient lighting and the
installation of new chillers, cooling towers and air handling units which largely comprised the air
conditioning system for the termunal. The latter mutigated the recurring condition of hagh
temperatures in the building that impacted the passengers, emplovees and retail products.
Energy savings of about $1 4 million per year are gnaranteed by the performance contractor for
10 wears and, funds, in part, a short term. United States Department of Agriculture gnaranteed,
low interest subordinate loan from a local bank.

Durmng FY 2013, the Authority completed several key capital mmprovement projects that
included the replacement and hardening of the ramp light system for safe aircraft operations; the
phased installation of an underground power distribution for storm hardeming at the south Tivan
facilities; and the completion of the navigational aids for runway 6. Projects that commenced
during the year included the rehabilitation of manway 6L/24R; Phase 2 of the sound insulation
program consisting of 30 residential homes; and the replacement of the preconditioned air and
ground power umits for the passenger loading bridges.

The Authority implemented 1ts second phase of the employee compensation program that was
developed through an independent expert study. The major objectives are for the recrustment

and retention of the Authority’s human resource assets.

Airline Signatory Rates and Charges

The Authority entered into an airport operating and lease agreement with signatory amlines to
provide those airlines with the nonexclusive right to use the amport facilities, equipment
improvements, and services, in addition to occupying certam exchisive use premises and
facilities. In exchange for more favorable rates. the signatory airlines are guarantors of the
Anuthority’s financial position. The signatory airlines also unanimously approved the 2013 bond
financing program and capital projects. These leases became effective October 1, 2006 and with
an extension of five years will remam in effect through September 30, 2016
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued

D. Financial Operation Highlights, continued

Adeptien of Gevernmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 65, Items Previously
Reported as Assets and Liabilities, (GASB Statement No. 65)

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, the Authority adopted GASB Statement No.
65. As described in Note 1 — Organization and Summary of Accounting Policies, the
implementation of this new statement required the restatement of the Authority’'s financial
statements at October 1, 2011. The effect of the restatement was the elimination of the bond
issue costs and the related amortization expense, which were recorded in the 2012 statement of
net position and the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, respectively.

Financial Position Sumimnary

A condensed summary of the Authority’s statements of net position at September 30, 2013, 2012
and 2011 i1s shown below:

2013 % Increase
2012 2011 (Decrease) from
ASSETS 2013 As Restated  As Restated 2012
Current assets:
Unrestricted current assets $ 15,701,558 §$ 12540055 § 7.736.116 251%
Restricted current assets 1.449.350 1.661.610 1.779.158 -12.8%
Non-current assets:
Unrestricted assets 28,466,280 20,261,161 21,577,162 40.5%
Restricted assets 130,549 525 32,941,612 32,671,610 206.3%
Capital assets 404 849 728 308063653 405381493 1.5%
Avigation easements 10,966,205 11,975 643 12,084 002 -8.4%
Accounts receivable from tenant 1.047 600 790 200 540.000 311%
Total assets 593030345 479151934 482670531 238%
Deferred outflow of resources — 2,860,031 3.326.187 -100.0%
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Payable from unrestricted assets 14,537 538 10,215,231 0,380,778 42 3%
Payable from restricted assets 1.867.990 15472 745 14,941 518 -87.9%
Long term hiabilities 250837084 155190040 160146200 67.4%
Total liabilities 276242 612 180878916 184 468 505 52.7%
Deferred inflow of resources 585,743 -— - 100.0%
NET POSTITON
Invested in capital assets —net
of related debt 154,075,301 240 647043 253 280 580 -38.3%
Restricted 130,130,885 28,720,477 28,604,250 353.1%
Unrestricted 31.995214 22 764 620 19634374 40.5%
Total net position $316.201.900 $301.133.049 $301.528213 5.0%
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Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Revemes (Note 5) :
Facilties and systems usage charges
Concession fees (Notes 3 and 9)
Rental mcome (Note 9)
Miscellneous

Total revemmes

Operatmg costs and expenses:
Contractual services (Note 9)

Persomnel services
Maternials and supplies
Bad debt

Total operatmg costs and expenses

Income from operations before deprecmtion
and amortzation
Depreciation and amortization
Loss from operations
Non-operatng mcome (expense):
Passenger facilty charge mcome
Interest mcome

Interest expense
Bond 1ssuance cost

Other expenses. nat (Note 5)

Total non-operatmg expenses, net
Loss before capital grants and transfer m

Capttal grants from the Untied States Government
Operatmg grants from the Unted States Government
Transfer from Government of Guam - Office of

Highway Safety (OHS)
Total capital and operatng grants
Increase (decrease) m net postton
Net postiion at begmnmg of vear (Note 13)

Net postiion at end of vear

See accompanying notes.

$

Year ended September 30,

2012
2013 As restated
27.076.675 $ 24.569.458
18.022.564 15,899.179
11,252,173 10,861,087
3.455.669 1.148.209
59.807.081 52.477.933
19.387.119 18,950,053
17.463.657 13,917,232
1.078.754 1.178.487

497.176 1.105.457
38.426.706 35.151.229
21.380,375 17,326,704
22,668,001 ) ( 24.193.004)

1.287626) ( 6.866.300)
6.559.690 6,096,248
2.976.706 1.194.681
6.093981) ( 7.164.599)
3.912.357) —
624.178) ( 433.014 )
1.094.120) ( 306.684 )
2381.746) ( 7.172.984)
16.489.713 6.369.134
946,273 382.298
14,701 26,388
17.450.687 6.777.820
15.068.941  ( 395.164 )
301.133.049 301.528.213
316.201.990  $ 301.133.049
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Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash recetved from customers
Cash paxd to supphers for goods and services
Cash pasd to emplovees

Net cash prowvided by operating activities

Cash flows firom investing activities:
Acquisition of mvestments
Notes receivable
Net sales of mvestments with trustee
Imvestment mierest mcome

Net cash (used m) provided by avesting activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acqusition and construction of arport ficiliies
Net proceeds ffom 2013 General Reverme Bonds
Principal payvment on 2003 General Beverme Bonds
Interest paxd on 2003 General Reverme Bonds
Loan cost
Passenger facility charge receipts
U5, Govermment capital grants
Transfer from Government of Guam - OHS

Net cash prowvided by (used m) capital and
related financmg activities
Net (decrease) merease mcash
Cash at begmmmg of vear
Cash at end of vear
Consisting of:

TUhrestricted
Eestricted - current

Non-cash investing and financing activities:

(

Year ended Septemmber 30,
2012
2013 As restated
56854245 50,600.813
22258973) ( 19.800.746)
17317719y (  13923006)
17,277,553 16,876,971
105,813,041 ) -—
10,800 ) -—
-— 1.045,000
2,976,706 1.194.681
102.847.135) 2.240.680
19362008) ( 10,655998)
247 540,014 -
155005,000) ( 0,207,683 )
10,961,195) ( 7.901.219)
172,757 ( 172,757)
6,497,519 5.762.941
16.420.402 3.649.065
14,701 26,384
85,317.190 (  18499267)
252302 ) 618.384
1.918 446 1.300.062
1.666,054 1.918 446
1.633.953 1.844 380
32,101 74.066
1.666.,054 1.918. 446

During the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, the Authority recorded an increase to
capital assets and bank loan totaling $5,333,331 and $5.594 897, respectively, representing loan

proceeds disbursed directly by the bank to a contractor.

See accompanying notes.
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Statements of Net Position

Assets
Current assets:
Unrestricted assets:

Cash (Note 3)

Passenger facility charge cash (Wore 3)

Accounts recevable, trade, net of allowance for
doubtfill accounts of $1,801,951 at September 30, 2013
($1.991.620 at September 30, 2012) (Note 3)

Accounts recetvable from tenant (Notes 3 and 9)

Passenger facility charge recewvablkes (Note 3)

Recemvables from the United States Government

Iiventory and other

Total urestncted current assets
Restncted assets:
Customs fees, cash (Note 3)
Custons fees, recewvables (Note 12)
Total restnicted current assets
Total current assets
Accounts recervable from tenant, wnrestricted (Notes 3 and 9)
General Revenue Bonds (Nete 7)

Investments and cash with trustees, wnrestricted
Investments and cash with trustees, restnicted

Capital assets, at cost less accumulated deprecation
(Notes 4 and 11)
Awigation easements (Note 4)
Total assets

Deferred outflow of resources:
Deferred differences on refimdmg of 2003 bonds (Note 5)

See accompanying notes.

September 30,
2012
2013 As restated
1.611.496 1.820.208
22457 24172
8.314.134 6.202.347
10,800 -—
957.380 895,209
4 571,986 3.556.402
213,305 50,717
15.701.558 12549 055
32,101 74,066
1.417.249 1.587. 544
1.449 350 1.661.610
17.150.908 14.210.665
1.047 600 799200
28,466,289 20.261.161
130,549 525 32.941.612
159015814 53202773
404 849 728 398.963.653
10,966,295 11,975,643
593.030.345 479.151.934
-— 2,860,031
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Statements of Net Position. continued

Liabilities
Current kabilites:
Payablk from unrestricted assets:

Accounts payable - trade
Accounts payable - construction
Other kabihhes (Note 11)
Securty deposits
Current portion of anmual kave (Norte 10)
Current portion of ban pavable to bank (Netes 6 and 10)

Total payable from unrestrictad assets

Payablk from restrictad assets:
Customs fees payable to Treasurer of Guam (Note 12)
General Reverme Bonds:
Curent mstallments (Nores 5 and 10)
Accmied mferest

Total payable from restnictad assets
Total current labilities

Non-ciurrent kabilities:
Payablk from unrestricted assets:
Accrued sick ave (Nofes 8§ and 10)
Long-term portion of ammmal leave (Note 10)
Long-term loan payable to bank (Notes 6 and 10)

Payablke from restricted assets:
Long-term bonds payable, less cumrent mstaliments:
General Reverne Bonds (Notes 5 and 10)

Total non-current kabilities
Total habilties
Defarred mflow of resources:
Defemred differences on refimdng of 2013 bonds (Note 5)
Commutrents and contmgencies (Notes 5, 6 and 11)

Net postion
Invested m capital assets net of relited debt
Restrcted (Notes 4 and 11)
Unrestrictad

Total net postion

See accompanying notes.

September 30,
2012

2013 As restated
2,435,697 2.752.640
5,454,840 4.752.646
3,013,828 903,803
1015279 1.281.047
354,394 308,095
2,263.500 217,000
14 537 538 10215231
1,867.990 2.042 986
-—- 9,590,000
— 3.839.759
1,867.990 15,472,745
16,405,528 25,687,976
197.783 159.480
748,412 687,076
8.664.728 5.377.897
250,226,161 148 966 487
259 837.084 155,190,940
276,242,612 180,878,916

585,743 -—

154,075,891 249,647,943
130,130 885 28720477
31995214 22764629
316,201,990 301,133 049
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued

E. Cost Per Enplaned Passenger & Deht Service Coverage, continued

Debt Service Coverage, continued

Net Revenues

$40.000,000 $31.336.790
$30.000,000 $24.445,005 $22 045 413
$20,000,000 -
$0 -
FY 2013 FY 2012 FY 2011
3.00 - Debt Service Coverage Ratio
206
200 - * 1.66 153
_—
oo | o 0 &
FY 2013 FY 2012 FY 2011

== Annual Debt Service Coverage == Debt Service Coverage Requirement

F. Outlook for FY 2014

For 2014, the global industry forecast 1s expected to mmprove in terms of passenger actrvity and
profitability with an increase of over 23% over 2013. Global economies are expected to improve
and business travel will rebound.

The Authority’s passenger projections of 1,711,939 enplanements reflect a very conservative
outlook vear-over-yvear with a 1.0% growth in FY 2014. The devaluation of the Japan currency
has mmpacted mmbound wvisitors to Guam but Japan still represents the largest market share.
Daversification 1s a key factor and this 1s evidenced by expanded air service by the three South
Korean airlines with the two low cost carriers announcing double daily service in FY 2014 from
Seoul to Guam. Additional diversification 1s expected from the Russia market due to visa waiver
parole authority and scheduled charters to commence directly from two eastern Russian cities.
The China wvisa waiver continues to be evaluated by the federal government and if parole
authority 15 extended, 1t will open a whole new chapter for the Authority and the visitor industry.
The Authority remams concerned that the hotel room inventory i1s an impediment that will stifle
sustained passenger growth.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued

F. Outlook for FY 2014, continued

Armed with approximately $109.7 million in funding from the Series 2013 Awport Bonds and
$27 mallion in federal grants or a total of $136.9 million of funds in hand, the Authority will
phase the mmplementation of the 19 bond projects. Priority will be placed on the International
Arrival Corridor with Building Seismic Upgrades and the Hold Bag Screening Eelocation as
these infrastructure projects will materially transform the operational landscape of the terninal
These two projects also represent 48% of the total project costs for all 19 bond projects. The
other bond projects will be implemented through preliminary engineering and design services or
equipment procurement packages. Additional federal funds are programmed for several of the
bond projects but may be made available within the five year performance period of the bond

projects.

Other capital improvement projects that the Authority expects to undertake dunng FY 2014
include the demolition and environmental remediation of the former Guam Police Department
facilities, the vacant awr cargo building and other miscellaneous structures; terminal painting
project; roofing membrane replacement; replacement and upgrade of the fire alarm and
suppression systems; and procurement of new ARFF vehicles. Funding for these projects 1s
from current federal grants and the capital improvement fund.

As authorized by law, the Authonty will refinance its 5-year subordinate loan with First
Hawanan Bank for the energy management program to a 10-year term. The reduced debt service
on the loan will be in an amount consistent with guaranteed annual energy savings with minimal
impact on the annual revenue requirement and the amline CPE.

The Authority and GVEB will continue to pursue an aggressive air service development program
The new air service development consultant will assist in developing a strategic program.

The Authonity will work closely with its awline partners to contain and reduce operational cost
through the bond projects and to sustain the budgeted $15.61 as CPE for FY 2014 as compared
to the FY 2013 CPE of $17.20. By maintaining a low cost structure and affordable airport rates
and charges, the Authority hopes to increase airline activity that ultimately translates into
increased operating revenue through its concessions.

The Authority has planned to further mncrease its non-airhne revenues as it did with the specialty
retail concessionaire. New proposals will be solicited for advertising the food & beverage
concessions. New and innovative concepts that add value may be incorporated mn to the business
program to generate higher returns to the Authonty. For example, the business model for the
food and beverage concessions will be reviewed so as to mmprove passenger services and

maximize sales through a diversification of healthy, branded and local choices.

Relative to the Tiyvan Parkway, the Authority expects to finalize the land release request with the
FAA and provide a grant of easement to DPW for the construction of Phase 1. DPW 1s expected
to 1ssue a notice to proceed to the awarded contractor by April 2014, Once alternative access
from Route 8 15 provided, the planned closure of Central Avenue will be initiated.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued

D. Financial Operation Highlights, continued E. Cost Per Enplaned Passenger & Debt Service Coverage

Revennes, continned Cost Per Enplaned Passenger

A summary of the cost per enplaned passenger for the years ended September 30, 2013, 2012
and 2011, and the amount and percentage of change in relation to prior year amounts is as

Receipts from grants from the United States Government amounted to $17 4 million for FY 2013
The majority of momes will be used for airfield and aviation infrastructure improvements,

environmental assessments and base conversion projects. follows:
2012 2011
Expenses 2013 As Bestated As Restated
%% of % of % of
Actual Totals Actual Totals Actual Totals
A summary of expenses for the years ended September 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 and the amount Airport Revenues
and percentage of change in relation to prior year amounts is as follows: Signatory Airline rentals & fees £20197845 416% £26.332 381 43.9% $24016.783 426%
Revemmes from sources other than
2013 Signatory Airline rentals and fees 33483811 477% 17208010 433% 26157787  464%
2013 2012 011 % Incresse Passenger Facility Charge revenue 6,559,691 93% 6,096 248 10.2% 3,576,838 99%
o 2012 ag 2011 u Decrease) Operating grants from U_S. Government 046.273 1.3% 408.686 0.6% 581.938 1.1%
2013 of Total  As Restated of Total AsBestated of Total from 2012
Operating: Airport Revenues $70,187,620 100.0% $60.046434  100.0% $36333346 100.0%
Confractual services $19387.119  273%  $18.950,053 283% $18662427 29.4% 23%
Personnel services 17463657 245% 13917232 08% 1374424 217%  255% " 5
Materials and supplies 1078754  15% 1178487 18% 825621 13% £5% Change Change
Bad debt expense 497.176 0.T% 1105457 1.7% 490.768 _ 0.8% -35.0%
Signatory Airline enplaned passengers 1,603 962 81% 1,566,356 10.6% 1,416,873
Total operating expenses 38426706 _540% 35151279 515% 33723020 532% 9.3% Signatory Airline cost per enplaned
passenger $17.24 2.5% $16.81 -0.8% $16.95
Debt Service Coverage
Depreciation and amortization 22.668.001 31.9% 24.193.004 36.1% 21830140 _344% £3%
Under the Bond Indentures for the issuance of the 2013 and 2003 General Revenue Bonds, the
Nom-Operating: . . N ) Authority 1s required to mamtam mimmum debt service coverage of 1.25 in relation to net
; 6093981 B6% 716459 10.7% 7343883 1l4%  -149% revenues versus annual debt service. A summary of the annual debt coverage for the years ended
Bond Issuance Cost 3912357 5.5% -— 0.0% - 0.0 0.0% S ber 30. 2013 2012 and 2011 i foll )
Ofther expenses 38435 _ 0.1% 433014 0.6% _ 489532 _08%  91.1% cptem - : 15 as Tollows.
2013 %
Total non-operating expenses 10044773 _141% 7597613  _113% 7833415 _124%  322% Icrease
2012 2011 (Decrease)
Tkl esguenses $71139480 1000% $66.941846  1000% S$61386375 1000%  63% 2013 As Restated As Restated from 2012
Total full time employees 190 132 199 Airport Revenues $70,187.620 $60.046,434 $56,333.346 16.9%
Less: Operation and Maintenance Expenses (328508300 (35.701.522) (34.335.336) B8
Net Revenues $31,336,790 24344912 21,998.010 28.7%
Plus: Other Available Monies 4378 486 4317380 4.304 480 0.3%
et Revenues and Other Available Monies  $35.665276 $28.662 207 §26,302.400 24 4%
Rate Covenant
Net Revenues and Other Available Monies $ 35,665,276 $ 28,662,202 £26,302 490 24 4%
Total Anmmal Debt Service 17313044 $ 17,260,519 $17.217919 0.3%
Annual Debt Service Coverage 2.06 1.66 1.33 24.1%
Debt service coverage requirement 1.25 1235 125
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued

D. Financial Operation Highlights, continued

Revennes

A summary of revenues for the vears ended September 30 2013, 2012 and 2011 and the amount

and percentage of change in relation to prior year 1s as follows:

2013

% Increase

2013 012 2011
Ya 2012 Ya 2011 %o )
2013 of Total As Restated of Total AsBRestated ofTotzl form 2012
Operating:
Fambtes and systems usage charges:
Arrival faclities § 7336052 83% § 67398217 98% § 6139113 04%
Departure facibhities 6,942 472 8.0% 6,348,530 9.5% 6,046,101 92%
Passenger loading bndge 4 666,053 54% 3,676,307 5.5% 3366254 51%
Landing fees 2963 427 34% 3,042 109 4.6% 2567747 39%
Imrm gration 2737477 3% 2337874 35% 22310176 34%
Pubhic apron 1,691 203 1.9% 2107797 32% 1,394 782 21%
Utility recovery charge and other fees 546453 0.6% 474 691 0.7% 442 015 0.
Fuel flowage fee 193 538 0.2% 183,933 0.3% 158956 0.3%
Total facihities and systems
usage charges 27.076.675 31.2% 24 569 458 36.9% 22345154 34.1%
Conceszon fees:
(General merchandize 9079 528 10.5% 7420798 11.2% 7.194 836 11.0%
Ground transportation 5,165,180 6.0% 4803013 T2% 4.1356,156 6.3%
Car rental 948 904 1.1% 934 605 1.4% 931,949 1.4%
Food and beverage 913 962 1.1% 902317 1.4% 844 104 1.3%
In-flight catering 811521 0.9% T54.661 1.1% 666213 1.0%
Other 1.103 469 1.3% 1.083.785 1.6% 969,659 1.5%
Total conceszon fees 18.022 564 20.8% 15899179 239% 14.762 957 22 5%
Fental meome:
Operating space - airline 3.469 810 4.0% 3,103,781 4. 7% 3065873 4. T%%
Operating space - non-airline 3.997 6594 4.6% 358204838 5. 7% 3,749 487 5%
Other 3.784 669 44% 3936818 5.9% 3.803.190 5.8%
Total rental income 11252173 13.0% 10.861.087 16.3% 10.618.530 16.2%
Miscellanegus 3.455 669 4.0% 1.148 209 1.7% 1481 857 2.3%
Totzl operating 59807081 68 9% 52477933 78.9% 45,208 4598 75.1%
Non-Operating:
Inferest income 2.978,706 34% 1,194 681 1.8% 1,155,144 1.8%
Passenger facility charge 6,559 690 7.6% 6,096,248 92% 5576838 8.5%
Grants from the 1. 5. Government 17,435 936 20.1% 6,751,432 10.1% 9508 361 14.5%
Transfer from Govermment of Guam - OHS 14.701 0.0% 26388 0.0% T8.063 0.1%
Totzl ron-operating 26.987.083 31.1% 14068749 21.1% 16318 406 24.9%
Totzl revenues 86794164 1000% S56546682 100.0% % 63526904 100.0%

14.7%
9.4%
26.9%
-2.6%
17.1%
-19.8%
15.1%
5%

10.2%

4%
T.5%
1.5%
1.3%
7.5%
1.8%

15.4%
11.8%
4.6%
39%
3.6%
201L.0%
14.0%
149.2%
T.6%
158.3%
44 3%
91.8%

30.4%
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B AFRO

56,559,691

ENON-AERO

Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued

D. Financial Operation Highlights, continued

Total Revenues Fiscal Year 2013

52,976,708
3.42%

mINTEREST INCOME

$31,556,083
36.36%

B PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE

Total Operating Revenues Fiscal Year 2013

$31.556,083
53%

BAFRONAUTICAL

§28.250,004
47%

B NON-AFRONAUTICAL

528,250,994
32.55%

Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam

EFEDERAL GRANTS
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam

Statements of Cash Flows. continued

Reconciliation of loss from operations and other expenses

to net cash provided by operating activities:
Loss from operations
Non-recirrmg and other expenses, net

Adpstments to reconcile loss from operations and other
expenses, net to ret cash provided by operatmg activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Bad debt expense
(Increase) decrease m assets:

Accounts recevable

Imventory and other

Accounts recervable from tepant
Increase (decrease) m habilites:

Accounts payable

Other current habilities

Securty deposis

Anmial leave

Accrued sk leave

Total adjustmenis

Net cash prowvided by operatmg actvities

See accompanying notes.

Year ended September 30,
2012
2013 As restated

1.287.626) $( 6.866.300)
3.950,792) (  433.010)

( 5238418) ( 7.299310)
22.668.001 24.193.004
497.176 1.105.457

( 2438668) ( 1763434)
( 162.588) 16.644
( 248400) (  259.200)
210,255 1,013,698
2110025 (  269.538)

( 265.768) 145.514
107.635 5.204
38303 (  11.068)
22.515.971 24,176,281
§ 17277553 $ 16.876.971
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam

Notes to Financial Statements
Years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012
1. Organization and Summarv of Accounting Policies
Organization

The Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam, (the Authority), was created by
Public Law 13-37 (as amended) as a component unit of the Government of Guam to own and
operate the facilities of the Guam International Air Terminal, located at Tiyvan, Guam. It is
charged with the acquisition, construction operation and maintenance of the airport and related
facilities for civil aviation on Guam. The Authority supports its operations through landing fees
and charges for the use of its facilities and through rentals under concessionaire agreements.

Basis of Accounting

The Authority utilizes the flow of economic resources measurement focus. Its financial
statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles gemerally accepted in the
United States as applied to governmental vnits using the accrual basis of accounting. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. GASB Statement No.
20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entifies
that Use Proprietary Fund Accounting requires that proprietary activities apply all applicable
GASB pronouncements as well as Statements and Interpretations issued by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB)., Accounting Principle Board Opinions and Accounting
Research Bulletins 1ssued on or before November 30, 1989, except those that conflict with a
GASB pronouncement.

Net Position

Net position represents the residual of all other elements presented in the statement mnet of
position. It 1s the difference between (a) assets and deferred outflows of resources. and (b)
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Net position 1s presented in three components: net
invested in capital assets, net of related debt, restricted and unrestricted.

Net mvested in capital assets component of net position consists of capital assets, net of
accummlated depreciation reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, notes or other
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction. or improvement of those assets.
Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related debts are also included n this
component of net position.

The restricted component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources related to those assets. Generally, a hability relates to restricted
assets if the asset results from a resource flow that also results in the recogmition of a liability or
if the hability will be liquidated with the restricted assets reported.
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam

Notes to Financial Statements. continued

1. Organization and Summary of Accounting Policies, continued
Net Position, continued

The unrestricted component of net position 1s the net amount of the assets. deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred mflows of resources that are not included in the determunation
of net invested in capital assets or the restnicted component of net position

Cash

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash 15 defined as cash on hand and in banks.
Cash on hand and in banks include passenger facility charge cash and customs fees. cash.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are primarily due from airlines utilizing the Authority’s airport terminal
facilities and various business establishments located in Guam. The Authority performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers, and generally does not require collateral Receivables are
considered past due when payment 1s not received within 90 days from the date of billing. As of
September 30, 2013 and 2012, receivables that are more than minety days past due totaled
approximately $2.618.000 and $3.588 000. respectively. The Authority accrues finance charges
on past due receivables. Receivables are stated net of estimated allowances for doubtful
accounts.

The allowance for doubtful accounts 1s stated at an amount which management believes will be
adequate to absorb possible losses on accounts receivable that may become uncollectible based
on evaluations of the collectability of these accounts and prior collection experience. The
allowance 15 established through a provision for bad debts charged to expense.

Inventory
Inventory is recorded at the lower of cost (using first-in first-out method) or market value.

Invesiments

Investments and related investment earnings are recorded at fair value. Fair value is the amount
at which a financial mstrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than 1n a forced or liguidation sale and are primarily determined based on quoted
market values.
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam

Notes to Financial Statements, continued

1. Organization and Summary of Accounting Policies, continued

Capital Assets and Depreciation and Amortization

Capital assets, whether purchased or constructed, are recorded at historical cost. Donated capital
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

Depreciation of awrport facilities and amortization of improvements has been computed by the
straight-line method using estimated useful lives of 5 to 35 years for buildings and 3 to 10 vyears
for equipment.

The Authority capitalizes buildings. land improvements and equipment that have a cost of
$5.000 or more and an estimated useful life of at least three years. The costs of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or do not materially extend the
lives of the assets are not capitalized.

The costs of 1ssuing bonds to finance construction of airport facilities have been capitalized and
are being amortized on a weighted-average basis over the lives of the bonds outstanding. During
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, the Authority adopted Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 63, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, (GASB
Statement No. 63). As described in Note 1 — Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements,
the implementation of this new statement required the restatement of the Authonty's financial
statements at October 1, 2011. The effect of the restatement was the elimination of the bond
issue costs and the related amortization expense, which were recorded in the statement of net
position and the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, respectively.

Capitalization of Interest

The Authority charges to construction-mm-progress mterest mcumred durmng the period of
construction. Interest is capitalized in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board
Accounting Standards Codification No. 835-20 Capitalization of Interest for all projects which
are not constructed with the proceeds of tax exempt bonds or grant funds. Interest capitalization
ceases when constructed facilities are placed in service.

Avigation Easements

Avigation easements are property rights acquired by the Authority whenever land use around the
Guam International Air Terminal needs to be controlled or when air rights are required. The
Authority capitalizes the cost mcurred for air rights and 1s amortized over 15 vears using the
straight-line method.
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority. Guam

Notes to Financial Statements. continued

1. Organization and Summary of Accounting Policies, continued
Impairment of Long-lived Assets

Long-lived assets to be held and used or disposed of by the Authority are reviewed for
imparrment whenever events or changes i circumstances mdicate that the carrying amount of an
asset may be recoverable.

Compensated Absences

In accordance with Public Law 27-005 and Public Law 28-068, employees vacation rates are
credited at erther 104, 156 or 208 hours per year, depending upon their length of service as
follows:

1. One-half day (4 hours) for each full bi-weekly pay period in the case of employvees with
less than five (3) vears of service.

2. Three-fourths day (6 hours) for each full bi-weekly pay period in the case of employees
with more than five (3) years of service but less than fifteen (13) vears of service.

3. One (1) day (8 hours) for each full bi-weekly pay period in the case of employees with
more than fifteen (15) vears of service.

The statutes reduce the maximum accumulation of such vacation credits from 480 to 320 hours.
Public Law 27-106 amended subsection (c) of 4 Guam Code Annotated § 4109. Employees who
have accummlated annual leave i excess of 320 hours as of February 28 2003, may carry over
therr excess and shall use the excess amount of leave prior to retirement or termination from
service. Any unused leave over the excess shall be lost.

Accrued annual leave up to 320 hours i1s converted to pay upon termination of employment.
Amounts to be paid during the next fiscal year are reported as current.

Bond Premium and Discount

Bond premimm and discount are amortized on a weighted-average basis over the life of the bond
issues. Bonds payable are reported net of bond premium and discount.
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam

Notes to Financial Statements. continued

1. Organization and Summary of Accounting Policies, continued
Operating and Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses generally result directly from the operation and maintenance of
the Guam International Air Terminal Non-operating revenues and expenses result from capital
and financing activities, costs and related recoveries from natural disasters, Passenger Facility
Charges and certain other non-recurring mmcome and expenses.

Revemes are recogmzed when earned or when services are rendered. Expenses are recorded
when a hability 1s incurred. regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Passenger Facility Charges

Passenger Facility Charges (PFC) generate mncome to be expended by the Authority for eligible
projects and the payment of debt service on the General Revenue Bonds as determined by
applicable federal legislation PFC income is recorded as non-operating income in the
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.

Environmental Casts

Liabalities for future remediation and monittoring costs are recorded when environmental
assessments and/or remedial and monitoring efforts are probable and the costs can be reasonably
estimated. These habilities are not reduced by possible recoveries from third parties. and
projected cash expenditures are not discounted.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted mm the Umited States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and habilities and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revemue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Risk Management

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss; theft of damage to, and destruction of assets;
operation and environmental liability; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illnesses;
natural disasters and employee health, dental and accident benefits Commercial msurance
coverage 1s provided for claims arising from most of these matters. The Authority has procured
catastrophic insurance, as discussed in Note 11.
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam

Notes to Financial Statements, continued

1. Organization and Summarv of Accounting Policies, continued

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2011, GASB issued Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of
Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position. This Statement provides financial
reporting guidance for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflow of resources. Deferred
outflows 15 defined as the consumption of net assets by the government that 1s applicable to a
future reporting period and deferred inflows 1s defined as the acquisition of net assets by the
government that 1s applicable to a future reporting period. GASEB Statement No. 63 also amends
the net asset reporting requirement by incorporating deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflow of resources mto the definitions of the required components of the residual measure and
by renaming that measure as net position, rather than net assets. The provisions of this Statement
are effected for financial statement for the periods begmming after December 13, 2011. The
Anthority’s adoption of GASB 63 resulted in a change in the presentation of the statement of net
assets to what 1s now referred to as the statement of net position and the term “net assets™ was
changed to “net position” throughout the financial statements.

In March 2012, GASB 1ssued 5Statement No. 63, frems Previously Reported as Assets and
Liabilities (GASB No. 653). This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting
standards that reclassify. as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources
certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes as outflows of
resources or inflows of resources, certain tems that were previously reported as assets and
liabilities. The provisions of this Statement will improve financial reporting by clarifying the
approprate use of the financial statement elements deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources to ensure comnsistency in financial reporting. The requirements of this
Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2012,

The implementation of GASB No. 65, which was adopted early by the Authority, required
restatement of the Authority’s financial statements as of October 1, 2011. The effect of the
restatement was the elimination of the deferred bond issuance costs of $4.857.336 and the
elimination of the amortization expense of $763.515, which were recorded in the 2012 statement
of net position and statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, respectively.

As Previously
Eeported Adjustment Restated

For the year ended September 30, 2012

Depreciation and amortization $24 956,519 $( 763.515) $24.193.004
As of September 30, 2012
Deferred bond issue cost $ 4857336 $(4.857.336) h J—
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam

Notes to Financial Statements. continued

1. Organization and Summary of Accounting Policies, continued
Upcoming Accounting Pronouncement

In March 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections — 2012, an amendment of
GASE Statements No. 10 and No. 62. This Statement amends Statement No. 10, dccounting and
Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues, by removmg the provision
that limits fund-based reporting of an entity’s risk financing activities to the general fund and the
internal service fund type. This Statement also amends Statement 62 by modifying the specific
guidance on accounting for (1) operating lease payments that vary from a straightline basis. (2)
the difference between the initial mvestment (purchase price) and the principal amount of a
purchased loan or group of loans, and (3) servicing fees related to mortgage loans that are sold
when the stated service fee rate differs significantly from a current (normal) servicing fee rate.

The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after
December 15, 2012,

In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, an
amendment of GASE Statement No. 23, effective for periods begmning after June 13, 2013, This
Statement establishes financial reporting standards for state and local governmental pension
plans, defined benefit pension plans and defined contribution pension plans, that are
administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements that meet certain criteria.

In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 68, Adccounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions, an amendment aof GASE Statement No. 27_ effective for periods beginning after June
15, 2014. This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting requirements related to
pensions for governments whose employees are provided with pensions through pension plans
that are covered by the scope of this Statement. as well as for nonemployer governments that
have a legal obligation to contribute to those plans. Upon implementation of GASB 68, the
Authority estimates that its net position and accrued unfunded liability to retirement fund would
decrease and increase, respectively, by approximately $6 million at October 1, 2013.

In Jannary 2013, GASB issued Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of
Government Operations, effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2013, This
Statement establishes accounting and fimancial reporting standards related to government
combinations and disposals of government operations. In addition, this Statement prowvides
specific accounting and financial reporting guwidance for combinations in the governmental
environment and also mmproves the decision usefulness of financial reporting by requiring that
disclosures be made by governments about combination arrangements in which they engage and
for disposals of government operations.

In April 2013, GASB i1ssued Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Nonexchange Financial Guarantees. The objective of this Statement i1s fo improve accounting
and financial reporting by state and local governments that extend and recerve nonexchange
financial guarantees. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for

periods beginning after June 15, 2013,
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam

Notes to Financial Statements, continued

1. Organization and Summarv of Accounting Policies, continued

Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements, continued

In November 2013, GASB issued Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made
Subsequent to Measurement Date, an amendment of GASE Statement No. 68. The provisions of
this Statement should be applied simultaneously with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 68,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. The objective of this Statement 1s to improve
accounting and fimancial reporting by addressing an issue in Statement No. 68 concerming
transition provisions related to certain pension contributions made to defined benefit pension
plans prior to implementation of that Statement by employers and nonemployer contributing
entiies.

The Authority is currently evalnating the effects the above pronouncements might have on its
financial statements.

2. Subseguent Events

The Authority has evaluated subsequent events through January 30, 2014, which 1is also the date
the financial statements were available to be 1ssued.

3. Concentrations of Credit Risk and Major Customers

Fmancial mstruments which potentially subject the Authority to concentrations of credit risk
consist principally of cash deposits and accounts receivable.

The Authority mamtains its cash in bank accounts, which at times may exceed federal depository
msurance limits. At September 30, 2013 and 2012, $250,000 of the Authority’s deposits in each
bank is covered by federal depository nsurance, with the remainder being uminsured and
uncollateralized.

A primary concessionaire accounted for 12% and 13%. respectively, of total operating revenues
for each of the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012. Receivables from the primary
concessionaire totaled $848 086 and $1.026.490 at September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

For the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, approximately 27% and 28%. respectively, of
the Authority’s total operating revenues, mcluding passenger faciltty charge income, were
derived from one airline customer. At September 30, 2013 and 2012, the receivable from this
airline customer totaled $2.030,362 and $1.821.986. respectively.

Concentration of credit risk with respect to the remaiming accounts recervable which are due
primarily from other varous airlines, concessionaires and tour operators 15 limited due to the
large mumber of customers comprising the Authornity’s customer base.
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam

Notes to Financial Statements, continued

4. Airport Facilities

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended September 30, 2013 is as follows:

Beginming Ending
Balance Transfers Transfers Balance
October 1, and and September 30,
2012 Additions Deletions 2013

Capital assets depreciated:

Terminal building $342344 415 $ 37,962 $154.962 $342.537.339
Other buildings 85,113,790 102,132 370,187 85,586,109
Auirfield area 82,246,467 - 236,184 82,482,651
Apron area 40,983,694 - - 40,983,694
Terminal area 24,748,708 -—- -—- 24,748,708
Support facilities 8.712.188 21.309 133.075 8.866.572
Total capital assets
depreciated 584,149,262 161,403 894 408 585.205,073
Less accumulated
depreciation (330.415314) (21.831.410) — (352.246.724)

Net capital assets

depreciated 253733948 (21.670.007) 894 408 232 958,349
Capital assets not depreciated:
Land 57461373 - - 57461373
Construction-in-progress 87.768.332 27.556.082 (894 408) 114.430.006
Total capital assets
not depreciated 145.229.705 27.556.082 (894.408) 171.891.379

$398.963.653 §$_5.886.075 $__ - $404.849 708
The Authority acquired avigation easements from surrounding residential homeowners in
exchange for the cost of installing residential sound msulation Construction-in-progress at
September 30, 2013 and 2012 included $1.799.823 and $696.963, respectively, of costs
associated with the residential sound insulation program. At September 30, 2013 and 2012, the
Authority’s avigation easements (net of amortization) amounted to $10966.295 and
$11,975.643, respectively, and 1s shown as avigation easements m the accompanying statements
of net position
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam

Notes to Financial Statements, continued

7. Imvestments and Cash with Trustees, continued

At September 30, 2013, the Authonty’s mvestments were as follows:

Investment Maturities (In Years)
Standard &
Poor s/Moody's
Credit
Rating  Less than 1 lto5 G6to10  Greater than 10 Total
US treasury notes Aaamf § — £2.003.154 5 — £ — $ 2,003,154
US government agencies:
Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation  Aaa/AAA 349 963 751,202 201,186 - 1,302,351
Federal National Mortgage
Association Aaa/AAAM - 574,773 28,466 163914 767,155
Corporate notes:
CDC Funding Corporation  Aa3/A+ - -— - 0549 194 0,540 194
Other Aaa/AAA - 36,683 - - 36,683
Other AalAs - 214 835 47,991 - 262,826
Other A2 5,753 -— - — 5,753
Other Al/AA+ 40220 -— - -— 40220
Other A -— 504,190 176,330 -— 680,520
Other BAAJA- 125,783 -— - -— 125,783
Other BAA?/BEB 20 849 -— - -— 20 8490
Other BAA1/BBB+ 10322 -— - -— 10322
Other Baa/BBB 10,897 210 452 88252 10,170 328,771
Other Bl/B+ 248525 -— - — 248 525
Other Not rated 184,775 -— - -— 184.775
Money Market Funds:
US Bank NA AalfAa 06829025 -— - -— 0682926
Citibank, NA AL/A 4,068 -— - -— 4.068
Bank of Guam BBB 132346537 -— - -— 132 346,537
Other Not rated 878741 -— — — 878,741
$143.927.359 $4.304.201 $542.225 $9723 278 §158497.153
Cash 4718
Accrued inferest 513.943
$150.015.814
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Notes to Financial Statements, continued

7. Imvestments and Cash with Trustees, continued

At September 30, 2012, the Authority’s mvestments were as follows:

Investment Maturities (In Years)
Standard &
Poor’sMoody's
Credit
Rating  Less than 1 lto5 6to 10  Greater than 10 Total
US treasury notes Aaa-mf § — $1.246250 § — § — $ 1,246,250
US government agencies:
Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation  Aaa/AAA 390 868 210,562 -—- -— 610,430
Federal National Mortgage
Association Aaa/AAA 824533 1688129 -— -— 2,512,662
Corporate notes:
CDC Funding Corporation Aal/AA+HAAA — -— — 18,045,950 18.045.950
Other Aaa/AAA - 17.884 - - 17,884
Other AalAA 68,341 282706 - - 351.047
Other A 233738 774,808 - - 1,008,546
Other Baa/BEB 118.056 133,512 — - 251.568
Other Not rated 15.430 -— — - 15.430
Money Market Funds:
Federated Investments AAA 4102595 -— — — 4,102,595
US Bank. NA Al/Aa2  13.430.207 -— — — 13.430.207
Cifibank, NA Baa? 3,831,899 -— — — 3,831,809
Bank of Guam BBB  6.868.118 -— — — 6,868,118
Other Not rated 869750 -— — — 869.750
$30762535 $4353851 $_— 18045050  $53.162.336
Cash 4,718
Accrued inferest 35.719
£53.202.773
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam

Notes to Financial Statements, continued

7. Imvestments and Cash with Trustees, continued

Investments are stated at fairr market value. The amortized cost and fair value of mvestments at
September 30, 2013 and 2012 are summarized as follows:

2013 2012
Gross Gross
Amortized unrealized Fair Amortized unrealized Fair
Cost Fains value Cost gains value
Cash with trustees § 4718 g — g 4718 g 4718 $ — $ 4718
Money market/
trust funds 142.054.510 — 142,054,510 25,714 887 — 25.714 887
Investment
agreements 10.038.662 — 10,038,662 18,045,950 — 18.045.950
Short-term
investrents 4 879510 31,267 49010777 8.120.110 67,286 8.187 306
US. Treasury
notes 1.032.048 25000 2007147 1212 615 37.207 1.240 822
$158.050 448 £56.366 $150015814 $53.008.280 £104 403 $£53.202.773

GASB Statement No. 3 previously required government entities to present mvestment risks
terms of whether the investments fell into the following categories:

Category 1 [nvestments that are insured or registered, or securities held by the
Authority or its agent in the Authority’s name;

Category 2 Investments that are uninsured and unregistered for which securities are
held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent in the Authority’s
name; or

Category 3 [nvestments that are uninsured and unregistered. with securities held by
the counterparty’s trust depariment or agent but not m the Authoniy’s
name.

As of September 30, 2013 and 2012, all investments were classified as Category 2 investments.

GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures (an amendment of GASE
Statement No. 3), amended GASB Statement No._ 3 to, m effect. ehmmate disclosure for deposits
and mvestments falling into categories 1 and 2 and provide for disclosure requirements
addressing other common risks of investments such as credit risk, interest rate risk, concentration
of credit risk, and foreign currency risk. GASB Statement No. 40 did retamn and expand the
element of custodial risk in GASB Statement No. 3.
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Notes to Financial Statements, continued

7. Investments and Cash with Trustees, continued

Credit risk for investments 15 the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an mnvestment will
not fulfill its obligations.

Interest rate nisk 1s the risk that changes 1n miterest rates will adversely affect the famr value of
debt mstruments. In compliance with the bond mndenture, the Authority mumimized the interest
rate risk, by limiting maturity of investments. A majority of the Authority’s mvestment
securities have maturities of 3 years or less. This reduces the impact of interest rate movements
seen with longer maturity investments.

Concentration of credit risk for mvestments 1s the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an
entity’ s investment in a single 1ssuer. GASB Statement No. 40 requires disclosure by 1ssuer and
amount of investments in any one issuer that represents five percent (5%) or more of total
investments for the Authority. In compliance with the bond indenture, the Authority minimized
credit risk losses by limiting investments to the safest types of securities. Bank of Hawan
Investment Services Group, Bank of Guam. Citibank N A and Coast 360 Federal Credit Union
manage the Federal Fund accounts mvesting mn U.S. Treasury Securities, U.S. Government
Agencies, Domestic Corporate Bonds, Money Market Funds and Certificate of Deposits insured
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The US. Treasury Securities are low rnisk
investments as they are guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. government. While
US. Government Agencies are not guaranteed, they are backed by the U.S. government and are
recogmzed as low risk mmvestments as well. In addition, certamn funds held with the Bank of
Guam-Trustee are mvested i Government Obligations Funds through Federated Investments.
Funds with co-trustee, U.S. Bank_ are mvested in First American Treasury Obligations Fund. All
investment securities are within the requirement of the 2013 and 2003 bond indentures.

Custodial credit risk for investments 1s the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty
to the transaction. the Authonty will not be able to recover the value of mvestments or collateral
securities that are m the possession of an outside party. Based on negotiated trust and custody
contracts, all of these mvestments were held in the Authority’s name by the Authority’s custodial
financial mstitutions at September 30, 2013 and 2012,

Foreign cumrency risk is the risk that changes m foreign exchange rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment.
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6. Long-Term Loan Payvable to Bank
Long-term loan payable to bank at September 30, 2013 and 2012 consisted of the following:
2013 2012

First Hawanan Bank, 3.75% imnterest rate fixed
for 5 years, monthly payment of interest only
shall be made for the first year of the loan
starting on July 27, 2012; thereafter, monthly
payments of principal and mnterest m the
amount of $309,687 starting on February 24,
2014, which will amortize the loan over a
period of 41 months. The principal balance
and all accrued interest will be due and payable
on July 27, 2017. The loan is secured by a
Security Agreement and a UCC-1 Financing
Agreement. The loan 1s subject to U.S.
Department of Agriculture’s (USDA) written
commitment to the bank to guaranty no less

than 90% of the loan to the Authority $10.928.228 $5.594. 897
Less current mstallment 2.263.500 217.000
$_8.664.728 $5.377.897

On June 27, 2012, the Authority entered a loan agreement with First Hawanian Bank (FHB) to
finance the Authority’s energy efficient upgrades. The loan amount 1s for $11.9 million. The
disbursement of the loan proceeds will be based on the payment of the costs incurred for work
actually done and improvements actually installed by a contractor under the performance
contract. The loan will be disbursed directly to the contractor by FHB upon the Authornity’s
approval During the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, the amount of loan disbursed
by FHB directly to the contractor totaled $10.928.228 and $5,594 897, respectively, and 1s
recorded as part of capital assets and current portion and long-term loan pavable in the
accompanying statements of net position. The undisbursed portion of the loan at September 30,
2013 and 2012 totals $971.772 and $6,305,103. respectively. The $11.9 million is subject to
USDA’s Loan Note Guarantee; however, the Loan Note Guarantee for the loan will not be
executed by USDA until all construction has been completed. equipment has been purchased and
mstalled, and the facility 1s certified as operational by the approprate official. which 1s expected
to be in January 2014, At September 30, 2013 and 2012, the loan was supported by a
Conditional Commitment for Guarantee by the USDA

On January 25, 2014, the loan agreement and note were amended by Commercial Loan
Modification Agreement. wherein the amended interest rate 1s at 5.75% per anoum until the
amended note 15 paid in full Beginning on February 24, 2014 and continuing thereafter durning
the term of the amended loan agreement, principal and interest shall be paid in monthly
mstallments of $130.625 over a period of 10 years from January 25. 2014 to January 24, 2024
The amended maturity date of the loan 1s January 24, 2024
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6. Long-Term Loan Pavable to Bank, continued

This loan 1s also secured by a Secunty Agreement and UCC-1 Financing Statement which
identify sums in the Subordinate Securities Fund and Capital Improvement Fund as collateral for
the loan. Both funds are allocated revenues pursuant to Section 5.02 of the Bond Indenture.
Obligations of the Authority payable from the aforementioned funds are subordinate to the
pledge and lien of amrport revenues to secure payment of the Authornity’s bonds.

As part of the loan conditions, the Authority shall maintain a minimum debt service ratio of 1.25
to 1.

Future maturities of the FHB long-term loan payable are as follow:

Year ending September 30
2014 £ 2.263.500
2015 3.450,000
2016 3.582.000
2017 1.632 728

—_— —

$10.928 228

e —————

7. Investments and Cash with Trustees

The aforementioned 2013 and 2003 bond indentures require the establishment of special funds
and accounts to be held and administered by the Authority’s trustees for the accounting of the
bond proceeds. At September 30, 2013 and 2012, mnvestments and cash held by the trustees, in
trust for the Authority, in these funds and accounts are as follows:

013 2012

Operations and Maintenance Reserve Fund § 10097454 § 9.378.260
Federal Grant Funds 6.491_ 857 6,414 589
Risk and Loss Management Reserve Fund 4 849745 3.838.135
General Revenue Fund 4,520,199 225,457
Rebate Fund 1.399.734 —
Capital Improvement Fund 682,262 400,038
Cost of Issuance 290,014 —
Operations and Mamtenance Fund 135024 4 682

Total Unrestricted 28466289 20.261.161
Cash with Trustees 4718 4718
Construction Fund 109 864_890 -—
Bond Reserve Funds 19.678. 484 18,506,524
Renewal and Eeplacement Fund 1.000_249 1,000,146
Debt Service Funds 1.184 13430224

Total Restricted 130,549 525 32941 612

$159.015.814 $53.202.773

e —

37



Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam

Notes to Financial Statements. continued

5. Long-Term Revenue Bonds Pavahle, continued

Future bond principal and mandatory sinking fund installments payable by the Authority to the
bond trustees are as follows:

Year ending Total
September 30, Pancipal Interest Debt Service
2014 $ - £ 7.572.198 $ 7.572.198
2015 9.845.000 13,550,775 23395775
2016 10.465.000 13,193,800 23.658.800
2017 10,890,000 12,712,250 23.602.250
2018 11,430,000 12.154.250 23584 250
2019 through 2023 66,310,000 51.322.776 117.632.776
2024 through 2044 138 395.000 08788119 237.183.119

$247.335.000

e ———

$209.294 168

e ———————

$456.629.168

e ———————————

General Revenue Bonds, Series 2013

On September 12, 2013, the Authomty issued $247.335.000 General Revenue Bonds
(collectively, the 2013 Bonds™) as follows:

e 2013 Series A (Non-AMT)
e 2013 Series B (Non-AMT)
2013 Series C (AMT)

$ 14.620.000
33.675.000
199,040,000

$247 335.000
The 2013 Bonds were obtained for the following:

current refunding of all of the Authority’s outstanding 2003 Bonds;
financing additions, extensions and improvements to the Airport;

funding the 2013 Bond Reserve Account; and

paying expenses incurred in connection with the 1ssnance of the 2013 Bonds.

pD oo

The aggregate purchase price 1s $247 540,014 (the purchase price), representing the principal
amount of the 2013 Bonds, plus a net ongmal issue premmm of $2.891.161 and less an
underwriters’ discount and msurance of $2.686.147. Interest on the 2013 Bonds will be payable
on April 1 and October 1 of each year. commencing on April 1, 2014.

The 2013 Bonds bear interest at a rate from 3% to 6% and mature on October 1, 2023 for the
2013 Series A (Non-AMT) and on October 1. 2043 for the 2013 Series B (Non-AMT) and 2013
Series C (AMT).
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5. Long-Term Revenue Bonds Pavable, continued
General Revenue Bonds, Series 2013, continued
The 2013 Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity date.

The refunding resulted mn a credit difference on refunding of $3,008461 representing the
difference between the reacquisition price and carrving amount of the 2003 bonds. The
Authority netted the $2 422 781 unamortized difference from prior refunding (as described in the
paragraphs below) against the $3.008 461 difference in current refunding. and the resulting net
credit of $585,743 is presented as a deferred inflow of resources in the accompanying 2013
statement of net position. The $585.743 is to be deferred and amortized over the ten year
original amortization period remaining from the 2003 bonds.

General Revenue Bonds, Series 2003

On September 30, 2003, the Authority issued $216.250,000 in Series 2003 General Revenue
Bonds to retwre $216.185.000 of outstanding 1993 Senies bonds. The net proceeds of
$192.699.547 (after payment of $11.007.710 in underwriting fees, msurance, and other issuance
cost) plus an additional $30.969.034 of 1993 Series fund monies were used to purchase US.
government securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow
agent to provide for the refunding of the 1993 bonds on October 31, 2003.

The refunding resulted in a difference on refunding of $7.937 352 representing the difference
between the reacquisition price and carrying amount of the 1993 bonds. The refunding
difference was deferred and 1s being amortized over the remaming life of the 1993 bonds. As of
September 30, 2012, the unamortized balance of the refunding difference totals $2.860.031 and
is recorded as a deferred outflow of resources m the accompanving 2012 statement of net
posttion.  For the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, the amortization expense totaling
$437.313 and $466.155. respectively. are included as a component of other expenses. net in the
accompanying statements of revenues, expenses and changes m net position.

As discussed in the preceding paragraphs, the 2003 outstanding bonds were refunded on
September 12, 2013 by 1ssuance of the 2013 General Revenue Bonds.

The General Revenue Bonds, mcluding immterest, are payable from and are secured by a pledge of
revenues under the indenture. The bonds are collateralized by a lien upon and pledge of
revenues to be recerved by the Authority, the trustees and the depository. The Authority also
engaged the Bond Issuer to secure the financial guaranty insurance policy, guaranteeing the
schedule payment of the principal and interest on the Bonds when due. Neither the payment of
the principal on the bonds. nor any mterest thereon, 1s a debt, hability or obligation of the
Government of Guam.

The bond indentures include certain debt service and reserve requirements including the
requirement that net revenues as defined in the bond mmdentures plus other available monies be
equal to at least 125% of the anmal debt service.
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4. Airport Facilities, continued

A summary of changes in capital assets for the vear ended September 30, 2012 1s as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Transfers Transfers Balance
October 1, and and September 30,
2011 Additions Deletions 2012
Capital assets depreciated:
Terminal building $341.133.294 § 42288 $ 1,168.833 $342344 415
Other buildings 84 814,026 03.445 206,319 85,113,790
Aurfield area 81,786,724 19,300 440,443 82.246.467
Apron area 40,983,694 - -—- 40,983,694
Terminal area 24,748,708 -- -—- 24,748,708
Support facilities 8.676.487 35.701 — 8712188
Total capital assets
depreciated 582,142 933 190,734 1,815,595 584,149 262
Less accumulated
depreciation (307.231.657) (23,183.657) — (330415314
Net capital assets
depreciated 274911.276 (22.992.923) 1.815.595  253.733.948
Capital assets not depreciated:
Land 57461373 - -—- 57.461,373
Construction-in-progress 73.008.844 16575083  (_1.815.595) 87.768.332
Total capital assets
not depreciated 130,470,217 16,575,083  (1.815.395) 145229705

$405.381.493

$(_6.417.840)

-

$398.963.653

On September 30, 2005, the Authority entered mto a quitclaim deed with the Government of
Guam, wherein the Government of Guam transferred a parcel of land with an appraised value of
$2.530.000 to the Authority. As more fully discussed in Note 11, the deed was entered mto in
response to a request by the Federal Awiation Administration (FAA) that the Authority seek
reimbursement of $564,702 in unresolved federal program questioned costs as of September 30,
2004. The $2.530,000 1s included as a component of capital assets mn the accompanymg
statements of net position. Due to mumerous uncertainties surrounding the Tivan properties, the
Anthority has noted that it may elect to utilize the excess contribution from the land transfer to
offset any subsequent obligations by the Government of Guam if so determined by the federal
government.

Interest capitalized for the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, totaled $1.189.963 and
$514.920, respectively.

Aarport facilities are located on approximately 236 acres. The Authority has no cost basis in 212
acres of this property; the remainmng 24 acres have a cost basis of $3.014,194.
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4. Airport Facilities, continued

In September 2000, the United States Navy (Navy) transferred approximately 1.417 acres of
property surrounding the Asrport facilities to the Authority and the Government of Guam at no
cost. This land is recorded at its appraised value of $51.210,000 (at September 2000) and is
included as a component of capital assets in the accompanying statements of net positon. In
fiscal year 2001, the Navy paid the Authority $10.000,000 (see Note 11) and the Authority and
the Government of Guam assumed the responsibility for the completion of certain environmental
response actions on the property.

5. Long-Term Revenue Bonds Pavable
Long-term revenue bonds payable at September 30, 2013 and 2012, consist of the following:

013 2012

General revenue bonds, Series 2013 (original 1ssue
of $247.335.000):

Varying interest rates (3% - 6%) payable
semiannually in October and Apnl principal
payments due in varying annunal installments

with $9.845.000 due m October 2014 $247.335,000 $ -—-

General revenue bonds. Senies 2003 (ongmal 1ssue
of $216.250.000):

Varying interest rates (1.45% - 5.373%)
payable semuannually m October and Apnl
principal payments due in varying annual
installments with $9.590.000 due in October

2012, The bonds were refunded mm 2013 —

Less current mstallments

Add net unamortized preminm on bonds

247.335,000

247.335,000
2.891.161

$250.226.161

155.005.000
155,005,000

(_9.590.000)
145,415,000
3.551.487

$148.966.487
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8. Employee Benefits and Other
Employee Retirement Plan

Employees of the Authority hired before September 30, 1995 are under the Government of
Guam Emplovees Retirement System. a defined benefit pension plan (DB Plan). Employees
hired after September 30, 1995, are members of the new Defined Coninbution Eetirement
System (DCES). Until December 31, 1999, and for several limited periods after December 31,
1999, those employees who are members of the defined benefit plan with less than 20 years of
service at September 30, 1995, had the option to switch to the DCRS. Otherwise, they remamned
under the old plan.

The DB Plan and the DCES are administered by the Government of Guam Retirement Fund
(GGRF). to which the Authonty contnibutes based upon a fixed percentage of the payroll for
those employees who are members of the Plan.

DB Plan

The DB Plan 1s a cost-sharing multiple-emplover plan. A single actuarial valuation 1s performed
anmually covering all plan members and the same contribution rate applies to each emplover.
GGEF issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the DB Plan. That report may be obtamed by writing to the
Government of Guam Retirement Fund, 424 A Route 8§ Maite, Guam 96910, or by wvisiting
GGPRF’s website - www.ggrf com.

Plan members of the DB Plan are required to contribute a certain percentage of their annual
covered salary. The contribution requirements of the plan members and the Authority are

established and may be amended by the GGRF.

Statutory contribution rates for emplover and employee contributions were 30.09% and 9.50%,
respectively, for the year ended September 30, 2013, 28.30% and 9.30%. respectively, for the
vear ended September 30, 2012 and 27.46% and 9.30%, respectively, for the year ended
September 30, 2011.

Actuanal contribution rates were 30.76%, 30.09% and 28 06% for the years ended September
30,2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

During the years ended September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, contributions made and accrued.
which were equal to the required contributions for those years, amounted to $326.586, $325,013
and $338.176. respectively.
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DCRS

Contributions into the DCES, by members are based on an automatic deduction of 3% of the
member’ s regular base pay. The contribution 1s periodically deposited into an mdividual annuity
account within the DCRS. Employees are afforded the opportunity to select from different
annuity accounts available under the DCRES.

Statutory emplover contributions into the DCRS for the vears ended September 30, 2013 and
2012 are determined using the same rates as the DB plan. Of the amount contributed by the
employer. only 3% of the member’s regular base pay 1s deposited into the member’s indvidual
annuity account. The remaining amount is contributed towards the unfunded liability of the
defined benefit plan

Members of the DCES who have completed five years of government service, have a vested
balance of 100% of both member and emplover contributions plus any earnings thereon.

During the yvears ended September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, contributions made and amounts
accrued under the DCRS amounted to $3.418.375, $2.368,797 and $2 314,135, respectively.

Retirement expense amounted to $3.744.961. $2.693.810 and $2.652.311 for the years ended
September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Unfunded Retirement Fund

Upon implementation of GASB 68, the Authority estimates that its net position and accrued
unfunded hability to retirement fund would decrease and increase. respectively, by
approximately $6 million at October 1, 2013.

Accrued Sick Leave

Public Law 26-86 allows members of the DCES to recerve a lump sum payment of one-half of
ther accumulated sick leave upon retirement. As of September 30_ 2013 and 2012, the Authority

has accrued an estimated liability of $178.631 and $159 480, respectively. However, this
amount 1s an estimate and actual payout could differ from those estimates.
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8. Employvee Benefits and Other, continued
Other Post-Employment Benefits

GovGuam, through its substantive commutment to provide other post-employment benefits
(OPEB). maimntains a cost-sharng multiple emplover defined benefit plan to provide certain post-
retirtement healthcare benefits to retirees who are members of the GGRF. Under the Plan, known
as the GovGuam Group Health Insurance Program. GovGuam provides medical. dental and life
insurance coverage. [he retiree medical and dental plans are fully-insured products provided
through insurance companies. GovGuam shares in the cost of these plans, with GovGuam’™s
contribution amount set each year at remewal Current statutes prohibit active and retmed
employees from contnibuting different amounts for the same coverage. As such, GovGuam
contributes substantially more to the cost of retiree healthcare than to active healthcare. For the
life insurance plan, GovGuam provides retirees with $10,000 of life insurance coverage through
an msurance company. Retirees do not share in the cost of this coverage. Becanse the Plan
consists solely of GovGuam’™s firm commitment to provide OPEB through the payment of
premiums to msurance compames on behalf of its ehigible retwees, no stand-alone financial
report 1s etther available or generated.

During the years ended September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Authority’s required
contributions to this Plan totaled approximately $390.000, $367.000 and $338.000. respectively.

9. Leases

DFS

In November 2002 DFS was selected as primary concessionamwe for the amport terminal for a ten
vear term commencing January 2003.

In accordance with the concession agreement. rental income from DFS shall be the greater of the
following:

1. Four mullion dollars (the “minimum guarantee™) plus five hundred thousand dollars (the
“additional rent™), or;

2. The sum of 20% of gross revenues up to $30 million plus 22 5% of gross revenues
exceeding $30 mullion

During the lease term, the mimmum guarantee rent and the additiomal rent are paid in equal
monthly installments on or before the first day of each month.

DFS entered into another concession agreement with the Authority for a separate additional store
space for a five year term effective fiscal vear 2011. For each of these agreements. DFS
guarantees to pay a minimum annual rent of $250_000 duning each lease year. or the percentage
rent which 1s 22 3% of annual gross revenues for each lease year, whichever amount is greater.

Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam
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0. Leases, continued

DFS, continued

Concession fee mmcome eamned from the DFS Concession Agreement for the years ended
September 30, 2013 and 2012 totaled $5.523.024 and $7.346.397. respectively, and includes
$523.024 and $2.346.397, respectively, of percentage rent income in excess of the mmimum
guarantee and additional rent on the DFS lease.

The DFS Concession Agreement expired on July 2013 and was not renewed. As of September
30, 2013, future munmmum lease payment receivables under the remamder of the DFS
Concession Agreements totaled $250,000.

Lotte Duty Free Guam, LLC (Lotte)

In March 2013, Lotte was selected as the primary concessionaire for the awrport termunal for a ten
year term commencing July 2013.

In accordance with the concession agreement. rental mcome from Lotte shall be the greater of
the following:

1. $15.160.000 (the “minimum guarantee) for the main and future rental space and
$240.,000 for the arrival retail space plus 1% of other gross revemues, or:

2. The sum of the on-site gross revenues multiplied by 30.1% and 25.0%, respectively, for
the main and future retail space and arrival retail space, respectively.

During the lease term. the minimum gnarantee rent shall be paid monthly i advance in equal
installments on the first day of each month.

DFS Protest

On May 30, 2013, DFS filed a notice of appeal of the Authority’s denial of DFS’s first protest
with the Office of Public Accountability (OPA). On December 26, 2013, the OPA issued an
order that it 1s precluded from proceeding with DFS’s appeal at this time.

On May 30, 2013, DFS also filed a cavil action seeking judicial review of the Authonty’s demal
of the first DFS protest. On July 19, 2013, the Court 1ssued a Decision and Order dismissing the

action for lack of subject matter jurisdiction

The Authority filed a motion for monetary sanctions against DFS and its attorneys for alleged
filing of a frivolous action in the Superior Court. Additionally, the Authority requested that the
Court reconsider its decision to withdraw statements made by the Court that it exceeded its
qurisdiction and were inconsistent with its holdings. The Supenor Court demed the Anthority’s
motions for sanctions and denied its motion for reconsideration. The Authority has appealed
these decisions and the matter is currently pending before the Supreme Court of Guam.
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9. Leases, continued
Lotte Duty Free Guam, LLC (Lotte), continued

The future minimum lease receipts under the remainder of the Lotte Concession Agreements as
of September 30, 2013 are as follows:

Year ending

September 30,
2014 $15.400.000
2015 15,400,000
2016 15.400.000
2017 15.400.000
2018 15,400,000
Thereafter 74.433.333

—_ = = 2= = =

Total future minimum lease payments recervable $151.433 333

e ————

Pac Air FProperties, LLC

Effective February 22, 2008 (Commencement Date), the Authority and Pac Air Properties, LL.C
(Pac Air) agreed to amend and restate its existing ground lease agreement dated October 31,
2006 mn 1ts entirety. The new agreement has an maitial lease term of fifty (50) vears begmning on
the commencement date, with an option on the part of Pac Air to renew for an additional ten (10)
vears. In accordance with the agreement. Pac Air shall make agreed-upon capital improvements
at a cost of no less than $25 mullion to the leased premuses with an area of approximately
540,000 square feet. On the termination or expiration of the lease, capital improvements will be
surrendered to the Authority. The Authority shall waive rental payments during the construction
phase but no later than the first two (2) years from the mitial term of the lease. Beginning on the
date of beneficial occupancy, which 15 on September 1, 2009 the date which marks the end of the
construction phase and the waiver of rent. the monthly rent shall amount to $21,600 but payment
of such rent shall be deferred for the next five (3) years, at such time the deferred rent shall be
paid starting on September 1, 2014 in equal monthly installments over the next ten (10) vears at
the same time and under the same conditions as the regular monthly rent pavments. For each of
the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, the Authority accrued rental income totaling
$259 200 and 1s included as a component of rental mcome in the accompanying statements of
revenues, expenses and changes in net position. At September 30, 2013 and 2012, accrued rental
receivable totals $1.058,400 and $799.200, respectively, and is shown as accounts receivable
from tenant in the accompanying statements of net position.
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Pac Air Properties, LLC, continued

Future minimum rental income under the aforementioned Pac Air lease agreement 1s as follows:

Year ending
September 30,
2014 $ 259200
2015 259200
2016 286.200
2017 286.200
2018 286.200
Thereafter 19 488 503

Total future minimum lease payments recervable  $20.865 503

In 2010, the Authority entered mnto a lease-back agreement with Pac Air to lease a total of 32 500
square feet of space in the completed facility on the leased premises for 3 years with annual rent
expenses of $1.058 400. Rent expense for each of the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012
amounted to $1.058 400 and is included under contractual services i the accompanying
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position

On December 2010, the Authonity entered mto a sublease agreement with the Government of
Guam’s Customs and Quarantine Agency (GovGuam CQA) to lease 25 000 sguare feet of the
aforementioned 32 500 square feet rental space for 5 years, with annual remtal income of
$1.024,200. Rental income for each of the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 amounted
to $1.024.200 and 1s included under rental income in the accompanying statements of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position.

Future minimal rent expense arising from the Pac Air lease-back agreement and future minimal
sublease income from GovGuam CQA 1s as follows:

Lease back Sublease Net (Expense)
Year ending Expense Income Income
September 30,
2014 $(1.058.400) $1.024.200 $( 34.200)
2015 (_923.400) 1,024 .200 100,800
$(1.981.800) $2.048 400 $ _66.600
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9. Leases, continued
Other Leases

The Authority has lease agreements with scheduled amr carriers. various concessionaires and
other airport users. The agreements provide the lessees with the use of the airport’s system
facilities., equipment and services. The signatory airline operating agreements and termmal
building leases expwre on September 30, 2016. Other ground lease agreements will expire
ranging from September 2015 through September 2035, The lease agreements with six rent-a-
car companies will expire in June 2016.

The future minimum rentals on other noncancellable operating leases (excluding the DFS. Lotte
and Pac Air and GovGuam CQA lease described above) as of September 30, 2013 are as

follows:

Year ending

September 30,
2014 $ 6.828.000
2015 6,598,000
2016 6,154,000
2017 1.352.000
2018 1.352.000
Thereafter 8.792.000

—_—

Total future minimum lease payments receivable $31.076.000
10. Long-Term Liahilities

A summary of changes in long-term liabilities during fiscal years 2013 and 2012 follows:

Outstanding Outstanding
September 30, September 30,
2012 Increases  Decreases 2013 Current MNoncurrent

Accroed sick leave  § 150480 § 38303 § — g 197783 § — 3 197,783
Accrued annual

leave 995,171 107,635 -— 1,102 806 354304 748412
Loan pavable to

bank 5.504 807 5,333,331 — 10928228 2263500 8.664.728
2003 General

revenue bonds 155 606,456 — 155,606,456 — — -—
2013 General

revenue bonds — 250226161 — 250.226.161 — 250.226.161

$162.446.004 $255705430 $155.696456 $262.454078 $2.617.804 $250837084
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Cnitstanding Cnitstanding
September 30, September 30,
2011 Increases  Decreases 2012 Current Noncurrent
Accrued sick leave § 170,548 §F — $ 11068 & 150480 § — g 150480
Acecrued annual
leave 030067 5.204 — 005,171 308,005 687.076
Loan payable to
bank — 5,504 8907 — 5,504 307 217,000 5,377,897
2003 General
revenue bonds 164.004 139 — 0207683 155696456 0500000 146106456

$166.064.654 $5.600.101 $9218751 $162446004 $10.115095 $152.330.909

11. Commitments and Contingencies
Environmental Response Actions

As discussed mm Note 4. in September 2000, the Navy transferred 1 417 acres of property to the
Authority and Government of Guam at no cost. [n fiscal year 2001, the Navy paid the Authority
$10.000,000 as a lump sum but not m accordance to the payment provisions of the Quitclaim
Deed from the Navy. In exchange for the payment, the Authority and the Government of Guam
apparently assumed obligations for environmental response actions addressing specific
groundwater contamunation even if the cost of the response actions exceeds the $10 muillion
recerved from the Navy. The Authority’s management has recerved the final draft of the
Decision Document (DD) for Operable Umit 3 (OU3) which 1s the groundwater located under the
former Naval Awr Station. The DD presents the selected remedy for OU3 which 15 the remedial
alternative 3. It calls for extraction and treatment at Well NAS-1 and future wells, if necessary,
and natural attenuation. The DD identifies the Navy as the lead agency for the cleanup with
support agencies that include the Authority, Guam Environmental Protection Agency (GEPA)
and the US EPA The Navy. the Authonty and GEPA are the anthorized signatories for the DD.
The final draft of the DD 1s presently being reviewed by the Authority’s attorneys.

The Authorty’s responsibilities under the draft DD are limited to sampling and testing as
currently performed. The new task 1s for the Authority to conduct a 5 year review to ensure the
remedial action 15 or will be protective of human health and the environment. This new task may
reduce the ongoing sampling and testing requirements or completely eliminate them Moreover,
the granular activated carbon (GAC) treatment provided under the Authornity’s new water system
satisfies the GAC treatment component of future wells meeting the selected remedy. No further
obligation of the Aunthority 1s required under the draft DD. A portion of the remaining balance of
the $10 million received from the Navy, although reprogrammed to the Capital Improvement
Fund, will remain as a contingent unencumbered sum to pay for future sampling and testing
requirements and any potential improvements under the Environmental Services Cooperative
Agreement that were not constructed under the Authority’s water system.
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Notes to Financial Statements, continued

11. Commitments and Contingencies, continued
Environmental Response Actions, continued

The long-term obligation to operate and maintain the facilities built under the remedial
construction as well as the required sampling will be handled through a water system commercial
agreement. As of September 30, 2013, the Authority estimated, based upon a weighted average
probability of future cash outflows. that its pollution remediation obligations as called for under
GASB No. 49 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations
totaled $153,007. At September 30, 2013 and 2012, future pollution remediation and monitoring
costs totaling $153,007 and $354 868, respectively. 1s reflected as a component of other current
liabilities in the accompanying statements of net position.

Federal Program Costs

The Authority receives, on a reitmbursement basis, grants from the U.S. Government for certain
capital construction projects primarily through the Airport Improvement Program (AIP). The
Authority also recerves grants from other sources. These grants are subject to financial and
compliance audits to ascertain whether federal laws and regulations have been followed.

As discussed i Note 4, on September 30, 2005 the Authority received a parcel of land with an
appraised value of $2.530,000 from the Government of Guam, which represented reimbursement
to the Authority for questioned costs totaling $564.702 as of September 30, 2004, that the FAA

requested for reimbursement.

As of September 30, 2011, questioned costs estimated to be at approximately $60.000 was
identified based on the construction costs of interconnections as reported by an independent
engineer during their review of the design and construction of the Authority’s water system
based on the grant applications submitted to the FAA Based on additional verification by the
project’s construction manager, the Authority subsequently reimbursed the FAA the verified
amount of approxmmately $60.000 on July 2012 to resolve the audit finding The FAA then
followed with a grant amendment letter to increase grant funding by $755.815 to reimburse the
Anthority for increased eligible project costs.

As of September 30, 2013, there were no unresolved questioned costs.
Commitments

The Authority has commitments totaling approximately $10.7 million under several construction
contracts at September 30, 2013.

In addition. the Authority has commitments under other various contracts totaling approximately
$12.2 million at September 30, 2013.
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11. Commitments and Contingencies, continued
Insurance

The Authority has adopted a policy of self-insuring its facilities for earthquake and typhoon
damage The Authority also mamtains deposit of $1 million anmually n the Renewal and
Replacement Fund which will be combined with funds m the Risk and Loss Management
Reserve Fund to cover damage in the event of a natural catastrophe. The balances in the
Renewal and Replacement Fund and Risk and Loss Management Reserve Fund are $1,000,000
and $4.852.628 respectively, at September 30, 2013. and $1.000.000 and $3.832.707,
respectively, at September 30, 2012. The Authority has a catastrophic msurance policy with
coverage up to $5 million as a supplement to the self-msurance.

Government of Guam General Fund

Pursuant to 3 GCA Chapter 22 § 22421 Transfer of Autonomous Agency Revenues fo
Autonomous Agencies Collections Fund_ certain autonomous agencies. to mchude the Authority,
are to remut certamn amounts to the Government of Guam General Fund at the end of each fiscal
year.

On March 31, 2011, the Authority recerved an mvoice from the Department of Admimstration
(DOA) for payment of $12.250,000, representing an anmual assessment on the Authority of
$875.000 for years 1998 to 2011. The Authority is unable to recognize this mvoice as a liability
as it does not conform to the requirements of 3 GCA § 22421 as 1t 1s unclear how the annual
contribution amount of $875.000 allocated to the Authonty was determined. This does not
conform to the requirement that the Governor of Guam and the Authority’s Board of Directors
shall consult and decide on a formmla. Moreover, the statute of hmitation for prior year
assessments 15 limited to three vears.

Notwithstanding the requirements of 3 G.C.A. § 22421, the Authority 15 prohibited by s 2013
and 2003 General Revenue Bond Indentures (2013 and 2003 Indentures) and federal law from
transferring any funds from its operating surplus to the General Fund. Any diversion of the
Anthority’s revenues under any formula will place the Authority in breach of the 2013 and 2003
Indentures and will jeopardize ongoing and future federal funding. possibly even subjecting the
Authority to millions of dollars i federal civil penalties. Accordingly, the Authority cannot
transfer any of its revenues to the General Fund as diwected by 5 G.C A § 22421 and no habality
has been recorded for this contingency as of September 30, 2013 and 2012. This position has
been supported by legal determinations, past and present.

The Authority recognizes that it is an instrumentality of the Government of Guam  The
Authority may reimburse the Government of Guam for costs of services and contributions
provided to the Authority subject to the standards of documentation as required by the FAA s
Policy and Procedures Concerning the Use of Airport Revenne. The Authority may also pay for
an indirect cost allocation that is reasonable, transparent, calculated similarly for other
governmental units and consistent with Attachment A to OMB Cucular A-87 and the
aforementioned FAA policy.
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Notes to Financial Statements, continued

11. Commitments and Contingencies, continued
Government of Guam General Fund, continued

During the course of 2013, there was no substantive progress on discussions with the Executive
and Legislative branches to repeal 3 GCA § 22421 or on the issue of the GovGuam assessment.

Water System Infrastructure Upgrade

The new airport water system was commissioned and made operational in phases during 2012
The phasing was required to address the fire protection 1ssues with the airport terminal first and
to address potential leaks and water loss with the existing piping and valves in light of the higher
water pressures.

The remaming work under the new airport water system 1is to mstall the laterals that connect the
new infrastructure to the existing structures m north Tivan that are presently supplied by the old
Navy water system. This 15 estimated to be completed by the pmd quarter of fiscal year 2013.

Concurrent with the commissioning of the new airport water system. the Authority entered into
an interim agreement with Guam Waterworks Authority (GWA) to operate and maintain the
water system for a munimum of one year. GWA s system rates will be status quo during the
mterim period. Moreover, the Authority 1s to momitor the system operations and mamtenance
processes and collect baseline data for subsequent negotiations with GWA for a longer term
agreement.

Although. the Authority continues to assert that all costs associated with the amrport water system
are supported by adequate documentary evidence, the Authorty did remmburse the FAA for
questioned costs as noted in the above Federal Program Costs. As a final measure, the FAA
would require that the independent engineering firm that performed the review of the airport
water system project assess that the final agreement between the Authonty and GWA conforms
to the uses as noted in their report.

Litigation

The Authority 1s mnvolved in certamn litigation mmherent to its operations. Management 1s of the
opimion that habilities of a matenial nature will not be realized.
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11. Commitments and Contingencies, continued
Other

In December of 2012, the Department of Administration paid out merit bonuses for line agency
employees who met the critenia set forth pursuant to 4 GCA Chapter 6 § 6203, Ment bonuses
are to be paid to emplovees who recerve a supernior rating evalnation conducted for increment
purposes. The Authority is corrently conducting its due diligence to determine its obligation to
pay out merit bonuses. At September 30, 2013, the Authority has accrued about $1.5 mallion as
an estimate of costs to pay bomuses for the amport employees. In addition. the Authority has
accrued about $681 000 as costs for the last mcremental 10% salary increase for Awrport Rescue
Firefighters and Airport Police uniformed personnel pursuant to Public Law 29-105. Ths
payment 15 for fiscal yvears 2012 and 2013, Management intends to settle this obligation in a
single distribution and does not expect that this will be a recurring operating expense.

Exchange License Agreement

On April 5, 2012, the Authority and Core Tech International (Core Tech), entered imnto an
exchange license agreement for a term of thirty vears. The agreement calls for the Authority to
allow Core Tech the night to use several dilapidated buildings owned by the Authority and i
exchange Core Tech allowed the Airport the use of Core Tech property on which the Authority
had madvertently encroached and made mmprovements on it in prior years. The license
agreement stipulates that no rent will be charged to either party during the thurty year term of the
agreement.

Surveys had discovered that the Authority had encroached onto Core Tech land wherein the
Authority constructed a parking lot and a drainage ponding basin as part of renovations to two
barracks that the Authority leased to the Government of Guam Customs & Quarantine Agency.

In lieu of receipt of back rentals and future rentals for use of the encroached property, Core Tech
accepted. in exchange, the use of the Authority’s three building that were m a state of disrepair
and had environmental concerns. The agreement requires Core Tech to make repairs and
mitigate all environmental issues over the buildings.

At the time the exchange license agreement was entered into_ the fair market values of the assets
involved by the parties were not determinable.
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Notes to Financial Statements, continued

12. Customs, Agriculture and Quarantine Inspection Services Charge

During the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, the Authority has assessed and collected
from air carriers fees for customs and agricultural inspection services rendered at the Awrport
termmal. Guam Public Law 23-45 requires the Aunthority to remit all collections, within five
days of receipt, to the Treasurer of Guam for deposit to the Customs, Agriculture and Quarantine
Inspection Services Fund.

At September 30, 2013 and 2012, the Authority recorded customs fees pavable to the Treasurer
of Guam totaling $1.867.990 and $2.042.986. respectively. for the above charges., of which
$1.417249 and $1,587.544. respectively, are reflected as customs fees, receivables in the
accompanying statements of net position. The fees are not reflected as an expense or revenue by
the Authority.

13. Prior Period Adjustment

As describe more fully m Note 1. the Authority early adopted the provisions of GASB 65. The
impact to the Authority’s net position as of October 1, 2011 and the results of 1ts operations for
the year ended September 30, 2012, 1s as follows:

Net position as of September 30, 2011, as

originally reported $307.149.064
Eeversal of deferred bond 1ssue cost { 4.837336)
Reversal of amortization on deferred bond

1ssue cost { 763.515)
Net position as of September 30, 2011, as

restated $ 301528213
Decrease i net position for the vear ended

September 30, 2012, as onginally reported $( 1.158.679)
Reversal of amortization on deferred bond

1ssue cost 763,513

Decrease in net position for the vear ended

September 30, 2012, as restated $(_395.164)
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Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam

Schedule of Funding Progress and Actuarial Accrued Liability — Post
Employment Benefits Other than Pension (Unaudited)

The Government of Guam maintains a cost-sharing muitiple employer defined benefit plan to
provide certain other post-retirement healthcare benefits (OPEB) to retirees who are members of
the Government of Guam Retirement Fund. Under the Plan known as the GovGuam Group
Health Insurance Program, Gov(Guam provides medical. dental and life insurance coverage. The
Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam is a participating employer of the
Plan.

The Schedule of Funding Progress presents OPEB valuations as of fiscal years ended September
30, 2011, 2009, and 2007 for GovGuam’s Post Employment Benefits other than Pensions. The
schedule provides, as a whole for the GovGuam, information trends about whether the actuarial
values of Plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Actuarial UAAT asa%
Actuarial WValue of Accrued Unfunded Funded Covered ofCovered
Valuation Date Assets Liabality (AAT) AAT (UAAT) Rato Payroll Pavroll
October 1, 2007 £F — £1.635.223.000 $1.635.223.000 0.0%  $466,346,000 350.6%
October 1, 2009 £F — $1.852.558,000 $1.852.558.000 0.0%  $466,346,000 397.2%
October 1, 2011 g — $2.088.331.000 $2.088331.000 0.0%  $466,346,000 447 8%

The aforementioned actuarial accrued liability presents GASB Statement No. 43, Accounting and
Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, resulis of
the OPEB valuation as a whole for the Government of Guam. The actuarial accrued hability, as
of September 30, 2011, attributed to the Antonio B. Won Pat Intemational Airport Authority,
Guam, totals $19.876.000.
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Schedule 1
Facilites and Systens Usage Charges
2013 2012
Arrmval facilibes $ 7336052 $ 6398217
Departure facilites 6,942 472 6.348.530
Passenger loadmg bridge usage charge 4,666,053 3.676.307
Landmng fees 2.963.427 3.042.109
Tnmuoration 2737477 2337874
Public apron 1.691.203 2.107.797
Utiliy recovery and other fees 546,453 474691
Fuel flowage fees 193,538 183,933
$ 27076675 $ 24569458
Schedule 2
Concession Fees
2013 2012
Gereral merchandse $ 9079528 $ 7420798
Ground transportation 5.165.180 4 803013
Car rental 048904 034605
Food and beverage 013962 902317
In-fhoht catermg 811.521 754,661
Advertsmg 433 155 452565
Money exchange 352.749 379211
Parkmg Iot 175,655 134263
Other 141910 117,746
$ 18022564 $ 15899179
Schedule 3
Rental Income
2013 2012
Operatmg space:
- Non-arhne $ 3997694 $ 3820488
- Asline 3.469.810 3.103.781
Buildmg and mamtenance shop rentak 1.965.001 1.957.055
Other 1.552.772 1.716.873
Cargo reptak 266,896 262 890
£ 11252173 $ 10861087
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Years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012

Schedul= 4
Contractual Services
2013 2012
Power $ 6.468.615 $ 6999726
Repars and mamtenance 5.654.711 3,545,945
Professional services 2842162 2618726
Miscellaneous 1,717,972 1,405,350
Insurance 1,356,787 1.384319
Utiliies and telephone 690,799 519,968
Advertismg and pronotions 460270 331,045
Travel Trammg and Certifications 195,803 144 974
$ 19,387,119 $ 18950053
Schedule 5
Personnel Services
2013 2012
Salanes and wages $ 12,883,180 $ 10356825
Retrement contributions 3.744.961 2,763,279
Insurance 835,516 797,128
$ 17463657 § 13917232
Full-ture employee count m September 190 192
Schedule 6
Matenals and Supphes
2013 2012
Equipment and vehicle mamtenance and supples $ 415630 § 514,130
Miscellaneous 237433 206,562
Office and securtty supphes 227,685 263,707
Electnical and phabmg 130,780 103,052
Buildmg namtenance and supples 67.226 01,036
$ 1078754 § 1178487
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Schedule 7
Inswrance Coverage
Name of Insurer Policy Risk Coverage
Dongbu Insurance Co._, Lid. Amport Operations Liabdiy % 500,000,000
Seoul Korea
Dongbu Insurance Co ., Property Insurance $ 200,000,000
Seoul Korea
Dongbu Insurance Co., Catastrophe Insurance $ 5,000,000
Seoul Korea
Dongbu Insurance Co., Drectors & Officers Liability $ 4,000,000
Seoul Korea (Sublt of $1.000,000 for
Employment Practices Lability)
Dongbu Insurance Co., Autonobike $ 2,000,000
Seoul Korea
Dongbu Insurance Co., Workers' Compensation $ 1,000,000
Seoul Korea
Dongbu Insurance Co., Crame Insurance $ 1,000,000
Seoul Korea
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Schedule 8

Reconcibation of Historal Fmancial Resulis

Change m net posttion:
Revermes
Expenses
Income before deprecmtion

Deprecmtion

Interest and other expenses
Transfer from the Government of Guam - OHS
Grants from the Untted States Governmment

Increase (decrease) m net postion

Net Revermes (per Bond Resolubon):
Revermes
Operation and mamtenance expenses

Net revermes available for debt service

Change m net posthion
Add back:

Depreciation

Interest expense

Miscellaneous
Deduct:

Capital grants from the Untted States Government

Interest mcome on finds related to construction

Other availlable momes
Funds available for debt service

Debt Service®

* amounts of the aggregate annual debt service for such fiscal years as defined m the 2003 Bond

Indenture Agreement

Year ended September 30,
2012
2013 As Restated
69343477 § 59.768.862
38426706) ( 35151.229)
30,916,771 24,617,633
22.668.001) ( 24.193.004)
8.248.770 424 629
10,630,516 ) ( 7,597.613)
14,701 26,388
17,435,986 6,751,432
15,068,941  §( 395.164 )
69343477 § 59.768.862
38024802 ) ( 35423950)
31318675 % 24344912
15,068,941  §( 395.164 )
22,668,001 24,193,004
6.093,981 7.164.599
4.073,997 ( 116.708 )
16.489.713) ( 6.369.134)
96.532) ( 131,685 )
31,318.675 24 344912
4.328.486 4,317.380
35.647.161 $ 28662292
17313944 $ 17269519

Antonio B. Won Pat International Airport Authority, Guam

Years ended September 30, 2013

Schedule 9
Employee Data
Department Employees (b)
Board 1
Administration 30 (c)
Property Management 9
Planning 1
Accounting 10
Engineering 3
Operations 19
Properties & Facilities
Maintenance 40
Airport Police 48
Ajircraft Rescue Fire
Fighting 29
Total 190

Note(s):

a.

b.

Expenditures above are funded by Operating & Maintenance Fund Account.

Personnel Services (a)

$ 57,005
2,704,693

825,550

04,040

884279

200203

1,722,724

2,690,676

4,524,772

3.660.526

$ 17.463,657

Filled positions, not including Timited Term Appointments related to Airport Police pursuant to

Transportation Security Adminstration mandated.

Administration consists of:

Executive management
Adnmunistrative support
Personnel

Marketing

Procurement

Management information system
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